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CCFNB BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(IN THOUSANDS)

JUNE
30, 2003 DECEMBER
UNAUDITED 31, 2002

ASSETS

Cash and due from DanKS .. u ittt ittt et ettt e ettt et et e et e $ 6,260 $ 5,953
Interest-bearing deposits with other banks ......... ... .. 1,132 8,010
Federal funds SOLd ..t iii ittt ettt et teeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeneeneen 7,477 2,057
Investment securities:

Securities Available—for—Sale ... ..ttt ittt ittt enetneeeneenenn 57,415 53,527
Loans, net of unearned INCOmME ... ..ttt ittt ttetneeeeeeneeneeeneenens 148,280 151,338
AllowancCe fOTr 10AN 10SSES vttt it tnteee e eeeeeeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenns 1,394 1,298

NEL LOAMS vttt ittt ettt eeee et eeeeeeeeaeeeseeeeeeeneeeeseeeeennnnes $146,886 $150, 040
Premises and equUipment . ... ..ttt ittt ettt ee e 4,377 4,415
Other real estate owWned . ...ttt ittt et eee e enaeaenns 43 68
Cash surrender value life INSUraANCe ...ttt ittt ittt eteeeteeeeneennnn 5,751 3,627
Accrued interest receivable ... ... i e e e e e e e e 786 894
(@ ol o T = = i 677 441

TOT AL ASSE TS i ittt ettt et e e e e e eeaeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeseeeeeneanaeeeens $230,804 $229,032

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Non—interest bearing .. ...ttt ittt ittt eeeeeenneeeeeeeeenannnns $ 16,985 $ 15,238
Interest Dearing ... i ittt ittt ettt et ettt e et e 158,526 156,889
Total DePOSI LS vt ittt ittt e ettt et ettt et eaee e seeeeeaaaaeeeean $175,511 $172,127
Short—term DorroOWInNgS ..ottt ittt e et ettt et ettt et aeeeeeeeeeannns 15,676 17,274
LOoNg—term DO rOWINGS & it ittt it e ettt ettt et e ettt teee e 11,341 11,347
Accrued interest and OLher EXPENSES . i ittt ittt ettt eeeeeeeannens 1,169 1,332
Other liabilities ittt it ettt e e e e ettt eeeeeee e eenaeaaens 3 112
TOTAL LIABILTITIE S & ittt ittt ettt et oo oo sossesssessesssnssesssasoes $203,700 $202,192
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STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock, par value $1.25 per share; authorized 5,000,000 shares;

issued and outstanding 1,280,804 shares

in 2003 and 1,292,724 shares 1n 2002 ...ttt et nneneeeeenneenns $ 1,601 $ 1,616
1S 1 By o = 3,732 4,009
Retalned earnings .. i ittt ettt ettt ettt eeeeeeeee e 21,294 20,679
Accumulated other comprehensive income (lOSS) e vvv it imneeeeeeennnns 477 536
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY ittt ittt it ettt teeteeeeeeeneeaeeeneean $ 27,104 $ 26,840
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY .. it tietineeenennnnn $230,804 $229,032
See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
_1_
CCFNB BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
UNAUDITED
FOR THE SIX FOR THE THREE
MONTHS ENDING MONTHS ENDING
JUNE 30, JUNE 30,
2003 2002 2003 200
INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loans:
BTSN o 2 $ 4,624 S 5,007 $ 2,291 S 2,
TaX—EXEMPE vttt it ettt ettt ettt 93 65 48
Interest and dividends on investment securities:
Taxable interest . .... .ttt eneennn 609 901 269
Tax—exempt interest ....... ... ... 340 409 156
Dividends ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e 28 30 12
Interest on federal funds sold ................. 29 19 17
Interest on deposits in other banks ............ 33 33 19
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME . ...t viteeeeennnenn $ 5,756 S 6,464 S 2,812 S 3,
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on depoSits i ii ittt e eennn $ 1,908 $ 2,352 $ 891 S 1,
Interest on short-term borrowings .............. 144 170 64
Interest on long-term borrowings ............... 337 337 169
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE &+t vvvvvvtmeennennn. $ 2,389 $ 2,859 $ 1,124 $ 1,
Net interest 1nCOmMe . ...ttt teennennnenn S 3,367 S 3,605 S 1,688 S 1,
Provision for loan loOSSES ...t iiiiineneeennnnns 100 59 50
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR
LOAN LOSSES 4t ittt ettt et teeeeeenaaaaennnens $ 3,267 S 3,546 $ 1,638 S 1,

NON-INTEREST INCOME
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Service charges and fees
Trust department income
Other income

TOTAL NON-INTEREST INCOME

NON-INTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and wages

Pensions and other employee benefits

Occupancy expense, net

Furniture and equipment expense

Other operating expenses

TOTAL NON-INTEREST EXPENSES

Income before income taxes

Income tax expense
NET INCOME
PER SHARE DATA

Net income
Cash dividends

................................. .32
Weighted average shares outstanding

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

CCFNB BANCORP,

—2—

INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(IN THOUSANDS)
UNAUDITED

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Provision for loan losses
Depreciation and amortization
Premium amortization on investment securities
Discount accretion on investment securities

Deferred income taxes
(Gain)

(Gain)
(Gain)
(Increase)

other assets

(benefit)

on sale of mortgage loans
Proceeds from sale of mortgage loans
Originations of mortgage loans for resale
on sale of other real estate owned
loss from investment in insurance agency
decrease in accrued interest receivable and

FOR THE SIX
MONTHS ENDING

JUNE 30,

2003 2002
$ 1,026 $ 1,055
100 59
194 244
267 100
(18) (12)
(41) (31)
(106) 0
3,867 0
(3,761) 0
(12) 0
1 6
(112) (170)

....................... $ 341 $ 326 $ 158 $
........................ 63 103 27
313 85 206
............. $ 717 $ 514 $ 391 $
$ 1,085 $ 1,075 $ 560 $
........... 382 373 196
192 180 89
............. 233 301 115
792 758 408
............. $ 2,684 $ 2,687 $ 1,368 $ 1,
............. $ 1,300 $ 1,373 $ 661 $
274 318 142
$ 1,026 $ 1,055 $ 519 $
$ .80 $ .40 S
.31 .16
............ 1,287,214 1,316,630 1,287,214 1,316,
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Net increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life

8 0= B o X (124) (49)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest, other expenses and

other 11abilities vttt it et et et e e ettt e e e (2106) (193)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES .........ccco.o.. S 1,065 S 1,009

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investment securities Available-for-Sale ......... $(29,129) $(11,906)

Proceeds from sales, maturities and redemptions of investment
securities Available-for-Sale . ... ...ttt eeneeeennnn 24,902 17,263
Net (increase) decrease 1IN 10aANS .« vt i it ittt e te e e eeenenenens 3,054 (5,540)
Purchases of premises and equipment ............cuiiieeeeenenn. (157) (198)
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned ................ 37 0
Purchase of bank owned life insurance policies ............... (2,000) 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES ..... S (3,293) S (381)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase (decrease) 1in deposits .....iiiiiiiin e $ 3,384 $ 8,744
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings ............. (1,598) (2,935)
Net increase (decrease) in long-term borrowings .............. (6) (5)
Acquisition of treasury sStoCk ... ...t e e e e (388) (461)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ...........c..ciiiiiinn. 96 97
Cash dividends paid ...ttt ittt ittt et (411) (407)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES ..... S 1,077 S 5,033
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ........ $ (1,151) S 5,661

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD ............. 16,020 8,518
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD ............. S 14,869 S 14,179

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for:
LIS o ot S S 2,490 S 2,892
TNCOME LAXES ettt v e e e e e neeeeeeeeeneneenaeeeseeeeeneenneeeseens $ 282 $ 402

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CCFNB BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2003

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of CCEFNB Bancorp, Inc. and
Subsidiary (the "Corporation") are in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
conform to common practices within the banking industry. The more
significant policies follow:

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
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The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CCEFNB
Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary, Columbia County Farmers
National Bank (the "Bank"). All significant inter-company balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS & LINES OF BUSINESS

The Corporation provides full banking services, including trust
services, through the Bank, to individuals and corporate customers. The
Bank has six offices covering an area of approximately 484 square miles
in Northeastern Pennsylvania. The Corporation and its banking
subsidiary are subject to regulation of the Office of the Comptroller
of the Currency, The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the
Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia.

Procuring deposits and making loans are the major lines of business.
The deposits are mainly deposits of individuals and small businesses
and the loans are mainly real estate loans covering primary residences
and small business enterprises. The trust services, under the name of
CCEFNB and Co., include administration of various estates, pension
plans, self-directed IRA's and other services. A third-party brokerage
arrangement is also resident in the Lightstreet location. This
investment center offers a full line of stocks, bonds and other
non—-insured financial services.

On December 19, 2000 the Corporation became a Financial Holding Company
by having filed an election to do so with the Federal Reserve Board.
The Financial Holding Company status was required in order to acquire
an interest in a local insurance agency that occurred during January
2001.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of income
and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The Corporation classifies its investment securities as either
"Held-to-Maturity" or "Available-for-Sale" at the time of purchase.
Debt securities are classified as Held-to-Maturity when the Corporation
has the ability and positive intent to hold the securities to maturity.
Investment securities Held-to-Maturity are carried at cost adjusted for
amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity.

Debt securities not classified as Held-to-Maturity and equity
securities included in the Available-for-Sale category, are carried at
fair value, and the amount of any unrealized gain or loss net of the
effect of deferred income taxes is reported as other comprehensive
income in the consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity.
Management's decision to sell Available-for-Sale securities is based on
changes in economic conditions controlling the sources and uses of
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funds, terms, availability of and yield of alternative investments,
interest rate risk, and the need for liquidity.

The cost of debt securities classified as Held-to-Maturity or
Available-for-Sale is adjusted for amortization of premiums and
accretion of discounts to maturity. Such amortization and accretion, as
well as interest and dividends, is included in interest income from
investments. Realized gains and losses are included in net investment
securities gains. The cost of investment securities sold, redeemed or
matured is based on the specific identification method.

LOANS

Loans are stated at their outstanding principal balances, net of
deferred fees or costs, unearned income, and the allowance for loan
losses. Interest on loans is accrued on the principal amount
outstanding, primarily on an actual day basis. Non-refundable loan fees
and certain direct costs are deferred and amortized over the life of
the loans using the interest method. The amortization is reflected as
an interest yield adjustment, and the deferred portion of the net fees
and costs is reflected as a part of the loan balance.

Real estate mortgage loans originated for resale are sold with limited
recourse to the Corporation.

PAST DUE LOANS - Generally, a loan is considered past due when a
payment is in arrears for a period of 10 or 15 days, depending on the
type of loan. Delinquent notices are issued at this point and
collection efforts will continue on loans past due beyond 60 days which
have not been satisfied. Past due loans are continually evaluated with
determination for charge-off being made when no reasonable chance
remains that the status of the loan can be improved.

—-5-

NON-ACCRUAL LOANS - Generally, a loan is classified as non-accrual,
with the accrual of interest on such a loan discontinued when the
contractual payment of principal or interest has become 90 days past
due or management has serious doubts about further collectibility of
principal or interest, even though the loan currently is performing. A
loan may remain on accrual status if it is in the process of collection
and is either guaranteed or well secured. When a loan is placed on
non-accrual status, unpaid interest credited to income in the current
year 1is reversed, and unpaid interest accrued in prior years is charged
against the allowance for loan losses. Certain non-accrual loans may
continue to perform, wherein, payments are still being received with
those payments generally applied to principal. Non-accrual loans remain
under constant scrutiny and if performance continues, interest income
may be recorded on a cash basis based on management's judgement as to
collectibility of principal.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES - The allowance for loan losses is
established through provisions for loan losses charged against income.
Loans deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the allowance for
loan losses, and subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the
allowance.

A factor in estimating the allowance for loan losses is the measurement
of impaired loans. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current
information and events, it is probable that the Corporation will be
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unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of
the loan agreement. Under current accounting standards, the allowance
for loan losses related to impaired loans is based on discounted cash
flows using the loan's effective interest rate or the fair value of the
collateral for certain collateral dependent loans.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level established by
management to be adequate to absorb estimated potential loan losses.
Management's periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for
loan losses is based on the Corporation's past loan loss experience,
known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may
affect the borrower's ability to repay (including the timing of future
payments), the estimated value of any underlying collateral,
composition of the loan portfolio, current economic conditions, and
other relevant factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it
requires material estimates, including the amounts and timing of future
cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans that may be
susceptible to significant change.

DERIVATIVES

The Bank has outstanding loan commitments that relate to the
origination of mortgage loans that will be held for resale. Pursuant to
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133 "Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" as amended by SFAS
No. 138, "Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain
Hedging Activities" and the guidance contained in the Derivatives
Implementation Group Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. C 13, the
Bank has accounted for such loan commitments as derivative instruments.
The effective date of the implementation guidance was the first day of
the first fiscal quarter beginning after April 10, 2002. The
outstanding loan commitments in this category did not give rise to any
losses for the period ended June 30, 2003 and the year ended December
31, 2002, as the fair market value of each outstanding loan commitment
exceeded the Bank's cost basis in each loan commitment.

—6—

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
computed principally on the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. Maintenance and minor repairs are charged
to operations as incurred. The cost and accumulated depreciation of the
premises and equipment retired or sold are eliminated from the property
accounts at the time of retirement or sale, and the resulting gain or
loss is reflected in current operations.

MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS

The Corporation originates and sells real estate loans to investors in
the secondary mortgage market. After the sale, the Corporation retains
the right to service these loans. When originated mortgage loans are
sold and servicing is retained, a servicing asset is capitalized based
on relative fair value at the date of sale. Servicing assets are
amortized as an offset to other fees in proportion to, and over the
period of, estimated net servicing income. The unamortized cost is
included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet. The servicing rights are periodically evaluated for impairment
based on their relative fair value.
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OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED

Real estate properties acquired through, or in lieu of, loan
foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair value
on the date of foreclosure establishing a new cost basis. After
foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and
the real estate is carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair
value less cost to sell and is included in other assets. Revenues
derived from and costs to maintain the assets and subsequent gains and
losses on sales are included in other non-interest income and expense.

BANK OWNED LIFE INSURANCE

The Corporation invests in Bank Owned Life Insurance (BOLI). Purchase
of BOLI provides life insurance coverage on certain employees with the
Corporation being owner and beneficiary of the policies.

INVESTMENT IN INSURANCE AGENCY

On January 2, 2001, the Corporation acquired a 50% interest in a local
insurance agency, a corporation organized under the laws of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The income or loss from this investment
is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The carrying
value of this investment as of June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002 was
$164,749 and $165,431, respectively, and is carried in other assets in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

—7—

INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes is based on the results of operations,
adjusted primarily for tax-exempt income. Certain items of income and
expense are reported in different periods for financial reporting and
tax return purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined
based on the differences between the consolidated financial statement
and income tax bases of assets and liabilities measured by using the
enacted tax rates and laws expected to be in effect when the timing
differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax expense or benefit is
based on the difference between deferred tax asset or liability from
period to period.

PER SHARE DATA

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 128, "Earnings
Per Share", requires dual presentation of basic and diluted earnings
per share. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net
income by the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding at the end of each period. Diluted earnings per share is
calculated by increasing the denominator for the assumed conversion of
all potentially dilutive securities. The Corporation does not have any
securities which have or will have a dilutive effect, accordingly,
basic and diluted per share data are the same.

CASH FLOW INFORMATION
For purposes of reporting consolidated cash flows, cash and cash

equivalents include cash on hand and due from banks, interest-bearing
deposits in other banks and federal funds sold. The Corporation
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considers cash classified as interest-bearing deposits with other banks
as a cash equivalent because they are represented by cash accounts
essentially on a demand basis. Federal funds are also included as a
cash equivalent because they are generally purchased and sold for
one—-day periods.

TRUST ASSETS AND INCOME

Property held by the Corporation in a fiduciary or agency capacity for
its customers is not included in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements because such items are not assets of the
Corporation. Trust Department income is generally recognized on a cash
basis and is not materially different than if it was reported on an
accrual basis.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Corporation's banking subsidiary acts as an independent community
financial services provider, and offers traditional banking and related
financial services to individual, business and government customers.
Through its branch, internet banking, telephone and automated teller
machine network, the Bank offers a full array of commercial and retail
financial services, including the taking of time, savings and demand
deposits; the making of commercial, consumer and mortgage loans; and
the providing of other financial services. The Bank also performs
personal, corporate, pension and fiduciary services through its Trust
Department as well as offering diverse investment products through its
investment center.

Management does not separately allocate expenses, including the cost of
funding loan demand, between the commercial, retail, trust and
investment center operations of the Corporation. As such, discrete
financial information is not available and segment reporting would not
be meaningful.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, "Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets" is generally effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 31, 2001, and addresses the financial
accounting and reporting for acquired goodwill and other intangible
assets and replaces APB Opinion No. 17 "Intangible Assets". The
statement addresses how intangible assets that are acquired
individually or with a group or other assets (but not those acquired in
a business combination) should be accounted for in financial statements
upon their acquisition. Goodwill and other intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life should not be amortized but should be tested for
impairment at least annually. Intangibles that are separable from
goodwill and that have a determinable useful life should be amortized
over the determinable useful life. The standard does not have any
impact on the Corporation's consolidated financial condition or results
of operations.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 143 "Accounting
for Asset Retirement Obligations" is generally effective for financial
statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The
statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the

10
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associated asset retirement costs. It applies to legal obligations
associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from
the acquisition, construction development and (or) the normal operation
of a long-lived asset. The Statement requires that the fair value of a
liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the
period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value
can be made. The associated asset retirement costs are capitalized as
part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. This standard is
not expected to have any impact on the Corporation's consolidated
financial condition or results of operations.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, "Accounting
for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets" is generally effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001, and for interim periods within those fiscal years.
The statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for the
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. The statement replaces
FASB Statement No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed 0f", and the accounting
and reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, "Reporting the Results
of Operations - Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a
Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events

and Transactions", for the disposal of a "segment of a business" (as
previously defined in that opinion). The statement also amends ARB No.
51, "Consolidated Financial Statements", to eliminate the exception to

consolidation for a subsidiary for which control is likely to be
temporary. This standard does not have any impact on the Corporation's
consolidated financial conditions or results of operations.

—90—

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 145, "Recession
of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13
and Technical Corrections" is generally effective for financial
statements issued on or after May 15, 2002. The statement rescinds FASB
Statement No. 4, "Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of
Debt", and an amendment of that statement, FASB Statement No. 64,
"Extinguishments of Debt Made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements".
The statement amends FASB Statement No. 13, "Accounting for Leases", to
eliminate an inconsistency between the required accounting for
sale—-leaseback transactions and the required accounting for certain
lease modifications that have economic effects that are similar to
sale—-leaseback transactions. The statement also amends other existing
authoritative pronouncements to make various technical corrections,
clarify meanings, or describe their applicability under changed
conditions. This standard does not have any impact on the Corporation's
consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 148, "Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure" is generally
effective for financial statements for fiscal years and interim periods
beginning after December 31, 2002. The statement amends SFAS No. 123,
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation", to provide alternative
methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. The
statement also amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to
require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial
statements about the method of accounting for stock-based compensation
and the effect of the method used on reported results. The Corporation
does not have any stock-based compensation, therefore the standard has

11
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no impact on the Corporation's consolidated financial condition or
results of operations.

ADVERTISING COSTS

It is the Corporation's policy to expense advertising costs in the
period in which they are incurred. Advertising expense for the periods
ended June 30, 2003 and June 30, 2002, were approximately $34,746 and
$31,226, respectively.

RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts in the consolidated financial statements of the prior
years have been reclassified to conform with presentation used in the
2002 consolidated financial statements. Such reclassifications had no
effect on the Corporation's consolidated financial condition or net
income.

-10-

NOTE 2 - ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for the periods ended June 30,

2003 and June 30, 2002 were as follows:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
2003 2002

Balance, beginning of year.......eueeiiiennnnnnnn. $ 1,298 $ 1,028
Provision charged to operations.................... 100 59
Loans charged-off. ...ttt iiiieeenn (36) (55)
RECOVELIES . it ittt ettt i it ettt it 32 42
Balance, JUNe 30 . ...t iite et teeeeeeeeeenneeeeeennn S 1,394 $ 1,074

At June 30, 2003 the recorded investment in loans that are considered
to be impaired as defined by SFAS No. 114 was $298,352. No additional
charge to operations was required to provide for the impaired loans
since the total allowance for loan losses is estimated by management to
be adequate to provide for the loan loss allowance required by SFAS No.
114 along with any other potential losses.

At June 30, 2003, there were no significant commitments to lend
additional funds with respect to non-accrual and restructured loans.

There were no real estate loans held for resale at June 30, 2003 and
December 31, 2002.

Non-accrual loans at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002 were
$2,281,000 and $2,122,000, respectively.

Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest amounted to
$161,000 at June 30, 2003.

12
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NOTE 3 - SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Federal funds purchased, securities sold under agreements to
repurchase, and Federal Home Loan Bank advances generally represented
overnight or less than 30-day borrowings. U.S. Treasury tax and loan
notes for collections made by the Bank were payable on demand.
NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Long-term borrowings are comprised of advances from the Federal Home
Loan Bank.
_11_
NOTE 5 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS
In April 2003 the Bank entered into non-qualified deferred compensation
agreements with three executive officers to provide supplemental
retirement benefits commencing with the executive's retirement and
ending 15 years thereafter. The aggregate commitment under these
agreements is $2,400,000, and the expected charge to operations to fund
such plans for the year ending December 31, 2003 is estimated to be
approximately $48,775.
There were no substantial changes in other plans as disclosed in the
2002 Annual Report.
NOTE 6 - STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Changes in stockholders' equity for the period ended June 30, 2003 were
as follows:
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS,
COMPREHEN
COMMON COMMON INCOME
SHARES STOCK SURPLUS (LOSS)
Balance at January 1, 2003 ........ 1,292,724 $ 1,616 S 4,009 S
Comprehensive Income:
Net 1income ...t i tineeneennnn 0 0 0 1,02
Change in unrealized gain (loss)
on investment securities
available-for-sale net of
reclassification adjustment
and tax effects .....iiiii.. 0 0 0 (5
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) S 96

Issuance

of 4,080 shares of common

stock under dividend reinvestment
and stock purchase plans ........ 4,080 5 91

Purchase

of 16,000 shares of

treasury stock ...... ... .. 0 0 0
Retirement of 16,000 shares of

EXCEPT COMMON SH

SIVE
RETAINED
EARNINGS
0 $20,679
6 1,026
9) 0
7
0
0
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treasury stock ....... ... .. (16,000) (20) (368)
Cash dividends $.32 per share ..... 0 0 0
Balance at June 30, 2003 .......... 1,280,804 $ 1,601 $ 3,732
_12_
NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK AND CONCENTRATIONS OF

CREDIT RISK

The Corporation is a party to financial instruments with off-balance
sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs
of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to
extend credit, standby letters of credit and commercial letters of
credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of
credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the
consolidated balance sheets. The contract or notional amounts of those
instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Corporation has in
particular classes of financial instruments. The Corporation does not
engage in trading activities with respect to any of its financial
instruments with off-balance sheet risk.

The Corporation may require collateral or other security to support
financial instruments with off-balance sheet credit risk. The contract
or notional amounts at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002 were as
follows:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

JUNE DECEMBER
30, 2003 31, 2002

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WHOSE CONTRACT AMOUNTS

REPRESENT CREDIT RISK:

Commitments to extend credit..........uiuunenen.. $12,098,613 $11,768,038
Financial standby letters of credit.............. 1,840,578 1,842,578
Performance standby letters of credit............ 48,404 48,404
Dealer f£loOr PlansS. ... ittt eteeeeeeeeenneeeens 962,237 1,393,763

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as
long as there is no violation of any condition established in the
contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Because many of
the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the
total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Corporation evaluates each customer's
creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral
obtained, if deemed necessary by the Corporation upon extension of
credit, i1s based on management's credit evaluation of the
counter-party. Collateral held varies but may include accounts
receivable, inventory, property, plant, equipment and income-producing
commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit and commercial letters of credit are

14
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conditional commitments issued by the Corporation to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in
issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in
extending loan facilities to customers. The Corporation holds
collateral supporting those commitments for which collateral is deemed
necessary.

-13-

The Corporation's exposure to credit loss in the event of
nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for
commitments to extend credit and letters of credit is represented by
the contractual notional amount of those instruments. The Corporation
uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional
obligations, as it does for on-balance sheet instruments.

The Corporation granted commercial, consumer and residential loans to
customers within Pennsylvania. Of the total loan portfolio at June 30,
2003, 81.2% was for real estate loans, principally residential. It was
the opinion of management that the high concentration did not pose an
adverse credit risk. Further, it was management's opinion that the
remainder of the loan portfolio was balanced and diversified to the
extent necessary to avoid any significant concentration of credit.

MANAGEMENT'S ASSERTIONS AND COMMENTS REQUIRED TO BE PROVIDED WITH FORM
10Q FILING

In management's opinion, the consolidated interim financial statements
reflect fair presentation of the consolidated financial position of
CCFNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for the interim periods presented. Further, the
consolidated interim financial statements are unaudited however they
reflect all adjustments, which are in the opinion of management,
necessary to present fairly the consolidated financial condition and
consolidated results of operations and cash flows for the interim
periods presented and that all such adjustments to the consolidated
financial statements are of a normal recurring nature.

The results of operations for the six-month period ended June 30, 2003,
are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the
full year.

These consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with requirements of Form 10Q and therefore do not include
all disclosures normally required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America applicable to financial
institutions as included with consolidated financial statements
included in the Corporation's annual Form 10K filing. The reader of
these consolidated interim financial statements may wish to refer to
the Corporation's annual report or Form 10K for the period ended
December 31, 2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

—14-

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors and Stockholders of CCEFNB Bancorp, Inc.:

15
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We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of CCFNB Bancorp,
Inc. and Subsidiary as of June 30, 2003, and the related consolidated statements
of income and cash flows for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2003
and 2002. These consolidated interim financial statements are the responsibility
of the management of CCFNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary.

We conducted our reviews in accordance with standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A review of interim
financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and
making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It
is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial
statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should
be made to the consolidated financial statements referred to above for them to
be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

We have previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, the consolidated balance sheet of
CCFNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2002, and the related
consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the
year then ended (not presented herein); and in our report dated January 20,
2003, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements. In our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2002, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated balance sheet from which it
has been derived.

/s/ J.H. Williams & Co., LLP
J.H. Williams & Co., LLP
Kingston, Pennsylvania

July 18, 2003

—-15-

CCFNB BANCORP, INC.
FORM 10-Q
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED JUNE 2003

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated Summary of Operations
(Dollars in Thousands, except for per share data)

At and For the Six Months
Ended June 30,

2003 2002 2002
Income and Expense:
Interest INCOME ... i iii ittt tneennnnnn S 5,756 S 6,464 S 12,780
Interest eXPEense . ...ttt 2,389 2,859 5,741

At and For the

$ 13,720 S
6,924
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Net interest income .................. 3,367 3,605 7,039 6,796
Loan loss provision ...........ccoc.... 100 59 309 163
Net interest income after loan loss
Provision .....iiiiiiiiii it 3,267 3,546 6,730 6,633
Non-interest income .................. 717 514 1,210 1,149
Non-interest expense ........c.eeeee... 2,684 2,687 5,479 5,104
Income before income taxes ........... 1,300 1,373 2,461 2,678
TINCOME LAXES vttt tteeeee e eeneeeeeeenn 274 318 539 621
Net 1nCOmME vttt ittt et ettt ieeeeenn $ 1,026 S 1,055 $ 1,922 s 2,057
Per Share: (1) v vttt ittt ettt e teeeeenn
Net income .......iiiiiiieeennennnnnn $ .80 S .80 s 1.47 §$ 1.54
Cash dividends paid ...........c...... .32 .31 .63 .59
Average shares outstanding ........... 1,287,214 1,316,630 1,309,084 1,338,007
Average Balance Sheet:
LOAMNS vt ettt e e e e eeeneeeeseeeeeannaes $ 149,809 $ 145,268 $ 147,545 $ 139,219
INVesStmMEeNt S & i vt ittt ittt et ettt e eeeeen 55,471 54,642 54,197 50,593
Other interest earning assets ........ 9,338 6,452 5,309 6,569
Total aSSeLS vttt eeeeneeeennnnn 229,919 219,127 223,476 208,630
DEePOSItES vttt i e e e e e e 173,820 161,443 150,883 149,601
Other interest-bearing liabilities 27,819 30,013 29,356 31,629
Stockholders' equity .....ooiann. 26,919 26,349 26,615 25,890
Balance Sheet Data:
LOAMNS vt ettt teeeeeeeneeeeseeeeenanaes $ 148,280 $ 148,517 $ 151,338 $ 142,990
INVesStmMEeNt S & i it ittt ittt ettt eeeenn 57,415 52,233 53,528 57,121
Other interest earning assets ........ 8,609 8,010 10,068 3,32
Total ASSEeLS v ittt et eeeeneeeeennnn 230,804 220,613 229,032 214,238
DEePOSItES vttt e e e e e e 175,511 164,410 172,127 155, 666
Other interest-bearing liabilities 27,017 28,198 28,621 31,384
Stockholders' equity ........oiioa.. 27,104 26,691 26,840 26,042
Ratios: (2)
Return on average assets ............. .96% .96% .86% .99%
Return on average equity ............. 7.62% 8.00% 7.22% 7.90%
Dividend payout ratio ................ 40.06% 38.58% 42.86% 38.31%
Average equity to average assets
ey e o J 11.71% 12.02% 11.77% 12.16%

(1)

(2)

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-Q,

Per share data has been calculated on the weighted average

shares outstanding.

The ratios for the six month period ending June 30,

annualized.

both in the MD & A and elsewhere,

number of

2003 and 2002 are

contains forward-looking

statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of

1995.

Such statements are not historical facts and include expressions about our

confidence and strategies and our expectations about new and existing programs

and products,

relationships, opportunities,

technology and market conditions.

These statements may be identified by such forward-looking terminology as

"expect, "
or variations of such terms.
risks and uncertainties.
interest rates,

"look," "believe," "anticipate," "may," "will,"

These include,

and sources for loans,

as

or similar statements
Such forward-looking statements involve certain

but are not limited to,
continued levels of loan quality and origination volume,
continued relationships with major customers,
the effects of economic conditions and legal and regulatory barriers and

the direction of

well as
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structure. Actual results may differ materially from such forward-looking
statements. We assume no obligation for updating any such forward-looking
statement at any time. Our consolidated financial condition and results of
operations are essentially those of our wholly-owned subsidiary bank, Columbia
County Farmers National Bank. Therefore, our discussion and analysis that
follows is primarily centered on the performance of this bank.

EARNINGS SUMMARY

Net income for the six months ended June 30, 2003 was $1,026 thousand or $.80
per basic and diluted share. These results compare with net income of $1,055
thousand, or $.80 per basic and diluted share for the same period in 2002.
Annualized return on average equity decreased to 7.62 percent from 8.00 percent,
while the annualized return on average assets remained at .96 percent for the
six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. Net interest income continues to be the
largest source of our operating income. Net interest income on a tax equivalent
basis decreased to $3.6 million at June 30, 2003, compared with $3.9 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2002. The decrease in net interest income is
primarily due to the decreased interest rates on investment securities, loans
and deposits. Overall, interest earning assets yielded 5.36 percent for the
quarter ended June 30, 2003 compared to 6.26 percent yield for the quarter ended
June 30, 2002. The tax equivalized interest margin decreased to 3.35 percent for
the six months ended June 30, 2003

16

compared to 3.73 percent for the six months ended June 30, 2002. Part of the
decrease is attributable to the investment in Bank Owned Life Insurance which
commenced in December 2002. The effect of this BOLI created $97,000 tax free non
interest income and such income is not included it the Net Interest Margin since
it is reflected in other income. Had it been included in the Net Interest Margin
the Net Interest Margin would be 13 basis points higher or 3.48%.

Average interest earning assets increased $8.2 million or 4.0 percent for the
six months ended June 30, 2003 over the same period in 2002. Average loans
increased $4.5 million or 3.1 percent, average investments increased .9 million
or 1.6 percent and average federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits with
other financial institutions increased 2.8 million or 43.1 percent for this six
month period, from $6.5 million at June 30, 2002 to $9.3 million at June 30,
2003.

Average interest bearing liabilities for the six months ended June 30, 2003
increased $8.8 million or 5.0 percent from the same period in 2002. Average
short-term borrowings were $18.7 million at June 30, 2002 and $16.5 million at
June 30, 2003, a decrease of 11.8 percent. Long-term debt, which includes
primarily FHLB advances, was 11.4 million and 11.3 million at June 30, 2002 and
2003. Average demand deposits increased $1.3 million from 2002 balances.

The average interest rate for loans decreased 62 basis points to 6.36 percent at
June 30, 2003 compared to 6.98 percent June 30, 2002. Interest-bearing deposits
with other Financial Institutions interest rates decreased 14 basis points to
1.44 percent from 1.58 percent at June 30, 2003 and June 30, 2002 respectively.
Average rates on interest bearing deposits decreased by 79 basis points from
3.21 percent to 2.42 percent in one year. Average interest rates also decreased
on total interest bearing liabilities by 66 basis points to 2.58 percent from
3.24 percent. The reason for these decreases on interest bearing liabilities was
primarily attributed to the decreasing rates on all deposit liabilities and the
tied-to-prime interest rates paid on repurchase agreements. The net interest
margin decreased to 3.35 percent for the six months ended June 30, 2003 from
3.73 percent for the six months ended June 30, 2002. The decrease in the overall
net interest margin is a result of interest rate changes with adjustable loan
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rates repricing downward throughout 2002 and 2003 in this continuing downward
interest rate environment. Income received on one-day investments fell. This
"squeeze" caused by interest rates is keeping the net interest spread in a
declining mode; however, the change in net interest margin is gradual and
slight. Our "asset" sensitive position places us in a position to have an
increase in our net interest margin when rates rise. The cost of long-term debt
averaged 5.94% for the past several years which contributed to the declining net
interest margin. This long-term debt will remain a deterrent to us in a
declining interest rate environment. This is due to the fact that the Federal
Home Loan Bank has the option to reprice these loans at their discretion. Until
interest rates would rise to make the current 5.94% average rate unattractive,
this in all probability will not occur. We will continue to use the following
strategies to mitigate this decline in our net interest margin: pricing of
deposits will continue to be monitored and lowered, if necessary, to meet
current market conditions; large deposits over $100,000 will continue to be
priced conservatively; and in this low interest rate environment the majority of
new investments will be kept short term in anticipation of rising rates.

NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income decreased to $3.3 million for the six months ended June 30,
2003 compared to $3.5 million for the same period in 2002.

The following table reflects the components of net interest income for each of
the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002

ANALYSIS OF AVERAGE ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL EQUITY
AND
NET INTEREST INCOME ON A TAX EQUIVALENT BASIS

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET AND RATE ANALYSIS
(Dollars in Thousands)

Six Months Ended June
Interest Average

Average Income / Yield /
Balance Expense Rate
(1) (2)

ASSETS:
Interest-bearing deposits with other financial institutions. $ 4,571 S 33 1.44% 3
Investment secUrities (3) i vttt ittt ettt e ettt e eeeeeenn 55,471 9717 4.15%
Federal funds SOld. ... u it eteeteeeeeeeneeoeeeeeeeneeneeens 4,767 29 1.22%
T 7= 5o = 149,809 4,717 6.36%
Total interest €arnNing assSetS. ... ittt i e e eeeeeeeeeennnnneens $214,618 $ 5,756 5.36% S
Reserve for 10An 10OSSES . v ittt ettt eeeteeeeeeeeeeenenens (1,3406)
Cash and due from banks. .. ... .ttt ittt et eneeneeaneens 6,107
(O N ol o = = i Y 10,540
] o= T A= $229,919 S
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LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL:

Interest bearing deposits ..ttt ittt ittt et $ 157,708 S 1,908 2.42% $
Short-—term DorroOWingsS ...t i ittt ittt et ettt eee e 16,475 144 1.75%
Long—term DOrrOWINgS .« i ittt ittt ettt ettt eaneeaeeees 11,344 337 5.94%
Total interest-bearing liabilities ......eeeiiiieennnnnnnnns $ 185,527 $ 2,389 2.58% S
Demand dePOSIE S v vttt ittt ittt ettt ettt e S 16,112 $
Other 1iabilifies v it ittt ittt et et e e ettt ettt ee e eaeeens 1,308

Stockholders' equUity .ttt ittt ettt et et 26,919

Total liabilities and capital ....iiiii ittt eeennneeens $ 229,919 $
NET INTEREST INCOME / i tvtitit ettt tnentineneneanenenenns $ 3,367 3.14%

NET INTEREST MARGIN (4)
TAX EQUIVALENT NET INTEREST INCOME / & iviiittteieeeennnnnnns S 3,590 3.35%

NET INTEREST MARGIN (5)

(1) Average volume information was computed using daily averages.

(2) Interest on loans includes fee income.

(3) Yield on tax-exempt obligations has been computed on a tax-equivalent
basis.

(4) Net interest margin is computed by dividing net interest income by
total interest earning assets.

(5) Interest and yield are presented on a tax-equivalent basis using 34

percent for 2003 and 2002.

The following table demonstrates the relative
changes in volume of interest earnings assets
and changes in rates earned and paid by us on

CHANGE IN NET INTEREST INCOME ON

Interest income:

Loans (1)

Investments

Federal funds sold and other short-term investments

Interest expense:

impact on net interest income of
and interest bearing liabilities
such assets and liabilities.

A TAX EQUIVALENT BASIS

Six Months Ended June 30
Compared with 2002
Increase (Decrease)
Volume Rate

(In thousands)

$ 317 $ (901)
41 (410)
46 (18)
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Deposits S 355 S (1,159)

Short-term borrowings (40) (13)

Long term debt (1) 0
Net : $ 90 $ (157)
(1) Interest income is adjusted to a tax equivalent basis using a 34

percent tax rate.

(2) Variances resulting from a combination of changes in volume and rates
are allocated to the categories in proportion to the absolute dollar
amounts of the change in each category.

Average interest earning assets at June 30, 2003 increased by 4.0 percent over
June 30, 2002 to $214.6 million from $206.4 million.

Average loans outstanding increased from $145.3 million to $149.8 million or 3.1
percent for the six months ended June 30, 2003 as compared with the six months
ended June 30, 2002.

The outstanding balance of loans at June 30, 2003 was $148.3 million compared to
$151.3 million at December 31, 2002.

Interest income from investment securities declined $363 thousand at $977
thousand for the six months ended June 30, 2003 compared to $1,340 thousand at
June 30, 2002. The average balance of investment securities for the six months
ended June 30, 2003 increased 1.6 percent to $55.5 million, compared to the
$54.6 million for the same period of 2002.

Total interest expense decreased $470 thousand or 16.4 percent for the first six
months of 2003 as compared to the first six months of 2002. The cost of interest
bearing liabilities decreased on an average yield basis from 3.24 percent
through June 2002 compared to 2.58 percent through June 2003. The average yield
on interest earning assets decreased from 6.26 percent to 5.36 percent through
June 2003 and 2002 respectively.

Average short-term borrowings decreased $2.2 million from $18.7 million at June
30, 2002 to $16.5 million at June 30, 2003.

Average long-term borrowings from Federal Home Loan Bank decreased slightly from
11.4 million at June 30, 2002 to 11.3 million at June 30, 2003 respectively.

18

NON-INTEREST INCOME

The following table presents the components of non-interest income for the six
months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002:

Six Months Ended
June 30,
(In thousands)

Service charges and feeS. ...ttt ittt ettt ieaeeeeeeeennnns $341 $326
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Trust Department 1nCOmME. . . v ittt ittt ettt ettt ettt eaeeeeeeeeenaeens 63
Investment securities gain — nNet. ... ..ttt ittt et 0
Gain ON SaAle Of L0aANS . i i ittt ittt ettt eeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeeeaaeeeeenns 106
Gain on sale of Other Real Estate Owned.........iiiiiiinteennnneennn 12
Gain on Cash Surrender Value Of BOLI .. ...ttt eneeeeeeeonneeeenns 97
Third party brokerage income. ..... ...ttt ii ittt tneeneeeeennnenns 36
Ll o L 62

< o T $717

Non-interest income continues to represent a considerable source of our income.
We are committed to increasing non-interest income. Increases will be from our
existing sources of non-interest income and any new opportunities that may
develop. For the six months ended June 30, 2003, total non-interest income
increased $203 thousand to $717 thousand or 39.5 percent, compared to $514
thousand for the six months period ended June 30, 2002. Service charges and fees
increased $15 thousand from $326 thousand at June 30, 2002 to $341 thousand or
4.6 percent at June 30, 2003. Trust Department income decreased from $103
thousand at June 30, 2002 to $63 thousand or 38.8 percent decrease at June 30,
2003. Third party brokerage income remained at $36 thousand for June 30, 2002
and June 30, 2003. We began selling fixed rate mortgages during 2003 and the
gains derived from these sales was $106 thousand through June 30, 2003 compared
to 0 through June 30, 2002. The loans are being serviced by CCFNB and the bank
retains some credit risk. Investment in Bank Owned Life Insurance is reflected
in the June 30, 2003 balance sheet and income statement. Other non-interest
income increased $20 thousand from $42 thousand at June 30, 2002 to $62 thousand
at June 30, 2003.

NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

The following table presents the components of non-interest expense for the six
months ended June 30, 2002 and 2003:

$514

Six Months Ende

2003

June 30,

20

(Dollars in Thousa

SAlaries ANd WaAGE S . v v v v v v e neeeeeeeeeeneeeaneeeseseeeneneaaeeesseeennnns $1,085
Employee benef it s. ittt i it e e e e e e e e e e e e e 382
Net OCCUPANCY EXPEI S e v v v v v v e e e e e e et e eaaeeeeeseeaeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeeenns 192
Furniture and equUipment XS . @ v v i vttt ittt et ettt eneeeeeeeeaneeeeeens 233
State sShares Lax. ...ttt ittt i ittt ittt ittt 138
(@ ul TS a4 o o 1= 654

1 o= $2,684

Non-interest expense remained at $2.7 million at June 30, 2002 and 2003.

Generally, non-interest expense accounts for the cost of maintaining facilities;
providing salaries and benefits to employees; and paying for insurance,
supplies, advertising, data processing services, taxes and other related
expenses. Some of the costs and expenses are variable while others are fixed. To
the extent possible, we utilize budgets and related measures to control variable

22
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expenses.

Salaries increased .1 percent at June 30, 2003 compared to June 30, 2002. A 2.4
percent increase was reflected in employee benefits from $373 thousand at June
30, 2002 to $382 thousand at June 30, 2003. This was mainly attributable to the
increased cost of health insurance.

Occupancy expense increased $12 thousand comparing $180 thousand at June 30,
2002 to $192 thousand at June 30, 2003. This increase was mainly due to snow and
ice removal and heating costs Furniture and equipment expense reflects a $68
thousand or 22.6 percent decrease for the first six months of 2003 compared to
the first six months of 2002. The decrease was attributable to the fact that a
significant portion of the bank's EDP equipment became fully depreciated.

Pennsylvania Bank Shares Tax increased 8.7 percent from $127 thousand at June
30, 2002 compared to $138 thousand at June 30, 2003.

Other expenses increased $23 thousand or 3.6 percent from $631 thousand at June
30, 2002 to $654 thousand at June 30, 2003. This increase occurred from the
addition of deferred compensation and deferred health plans of $20,000,
additional loan costs of $9,000, additional other professional expense of
$3,000, additional Other Real Estate expense of $2,000 and, conversely, ATM
expense decreased $11,000 primarily due to changing vendors.

INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense as a percentage of pre-tax income was 21.1 percent for the
six months ended June 30, 2003 compared with 23.2 percent for the same period in
2002. The effective tax rate for 2003 remains at 34 percent.

ASSET / LIABILITY MANAGEMENT
INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

Our success is largely dependent upon our ability to manage interest rate risk.
Interest rate risk can be defined as the exposure of our net interest income to
the movement in interest rates. We do not currently use derivatives to manage
market and interest rate risks. Our interest rate risk management is the
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responsibility of the Asset / Liability Management Committee ("ALCO"), which

reports to the Board of Directors. ALCO establishes policies that monitor and
coordinate our sources, uses and pricing of funds as well as interest-earning
asset pricing and volume.

We use a simulation model to analyze net interest income sensitivity to
movements in interest rates. The simulation model projects net interest income
based on various interest rate scenarios over a 12 and 24 month period. The
model is based on the actual maturity and repricing characteristics of rate
sensitive assets and liabilities. The model incorporates assumptions regarding
the impact of changing interest rates on the prepayment rates of certain assets
and liabilities. In the current stagnant interest rate environment, our net
interest income is not expected to change materially.

LIQUIDITY
Liquidity measures the ability to satisfy current and future cash flow needs as

they become due. Maintaining a level of liquid funds through asset/liability
management seeks to ensure that these needs are met at a reasonable cost. On the
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asset side, liquid funds are maintained in the form of cash and due from banks,
federal funds sold, investment securities maturing within one year, and security
and loan payments. Liquid assets amounted to $ 204.1 million and $202.3 million
at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively. This represents 95.2
percent and 94.1 percent of earning assets, and 88.4 percent and 88.3 percent of
total assets at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively.

On the liability side, the primary source of funds available to meet liquidity
needs is our core deposit base, which generally excludes certificates of deposit
over $100 thousand. Core deposits averaged approximately $143.7 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2003 and $140.9 million for the year ended December
31, 2002, representing 67.0 percent and 68.3 percent of average earning assets.
Short-term and long-term borrowings through repurchase agreements, Federal Home
Loan Bank advances and large dollar certificates of deposit, generally those
over $100 thousand, are used as supplemental funding sources. Additional
liquidity is derived from scheduled loan and investment payments of principal
and interest, as well as prepayments received. For the six months ended June 30,
2003 there were $24.9 million of proceeds from the sales, maturities and
redemptions of investment securities available for sale. Purchases of investment
securities for the six months ended June 30, 2002 were $29.1. Short-term
borrowings and certificates of deposit over $100 thousand amounted to $47.5
million and $48.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and the year
ended December 31, 2002, respectively. This strategy of lowering short-term
borrowings and certificates of deposit interest rates has positively impacted
the interest expense of the bank.

Our cash requirements consist primarily of dividends to shareholders. This cash
need is routinely satisfied by dividends collected from the bank along with cash
and investments owned. Projected cash flows from this source are expected to be
adequate to pay dividends, given the current capital levels and current
profitable operations of the bank. In addition, we may repurchase shares of our
outstanding common stock for benefit plans and other corporate purposes. The
cash required for a purchase of shares can be met by using our own funds,
dividends received from the bank, and borrowed funds.

As of June 30, 2003, we had $57.4 million of securities available for sale
recorded at their fair value, compared with $53.5 million at December 31, 2002.
As of June 30, 2003, the investment securities available for sale had an
unrealized gain of $477 thousand, net of deferred taxes, compared with an
unrealized gain of $536 thousand, net of deferred taxes, at December 31, 2002.
These securities are not considered trading account securities which may be sold
on a continuous basis, but rather are securities which may be sold to meet our
various liquidity and interest rate requirements.

NON-PERFORMING ASSETS

Shown below is a summary of past due and non-accrual loans:

(Dollars in thousands)

June 30, December 31,
2003 2002
Past due and non-accrual:
Days 30 - 89 $ 499 $1,841
Days 90 plus 161l 50
Non-accrual 2,281 2,122
Total $2,941 $4,013
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Past due and non-accrual loans decreased 27.5 Percent from 4.0 million at
December 31, 2002 to 2.9 million at June 30, 2003. The loan delinquency
expressed as a ratio to total loans was 2.0 percent at June 30, 2003 and 2.6
percent at December 31, 2002.

The amount of loan delinquencies is attributed to the current economic
conditions, which result in less profitability for many local companies. This
further impacts the local job market and the associated wages. The provision for
loan losses for 2003 increased from $59 thousand at June 30, 2002 to $100
thousand at June 30, 2003. Management is diligent in its efforts to reduce these
delinquencies and has increased monitoring and review of current loans to
foresee future delinquency occurrences and react to them quickly. During the
second quarter a Chief Lending Officer was hired.

Any loans classified for regulatory purposes as loss, doubtful, substandard, or
special mention that have not been disclosed under Industry Guide 3 do not (i)
represent or result from trends or uncertainties which we reasonably expect will
materially impact future operating results, liquidity, or capital resources, or
(ii) represent material credits about which we are aware of any information
which causes us to have serious doubts as to the ability of such borrowers to
comply with the loan repayment terms.

We adhere to principles provided by Financial Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 114, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan" - Refer to
Note 2 above for other details.
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The following analysis provides a schedule of loan maturities / interest rate
sensitivities. This schedule presents a repricing and maturity analysis as
required by the FFIEC:

MATURITY AND REPRICING DATA FOR LOANS AND LEASES

Closed-end loans secured by first liens and 1-4 family residential properties with a
remaining maturity or repricing frequency of:
(1) Three MONENS OF LES S . it it ittt ittt ettt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeeeeoneeeeeenens

(2) Over three months through 12 monthS. ... ..ttt ittt et e ettt et aeeeeeeeens
(3) Over one year through Lhree YearsS . ... it ittt ittt ettt ettt e ettt eeaeeeaeeeens
(4) Over three years through five YearS. ...ttt ittt it ittt et ettt eeaeeeeeneens
(5) Over five years throUugh 10 YEarS . i ittt ittt ittt ettt e eaeeeeeeeeeaaaeeeneens

(B) OVET LD YT S e i e e e ettt et a e e e e e et eeaeee e aeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeaseeeeeeens
All loans and leases other than closed-end loans secured by first liens on 1-4 family residential
properties with a remaining maturity or repricing frequency of:

(1) Three MONTNS OF LSS i it ittt ittt et et et e et et et et ettt ettt ettt eeeeeeeeaeanas
(2) Over three months through 12 monthS. ... ..ttt ettt et e ettt et e
(3) Over one year through Lhree YearsS . ... ittt ittt ettt e ettt ae et eeaeeeaeaeens
(4) Over three years through five YearsS ...ttt ittt ittt ettt ettt eeaeeeeeneens
(5) Over five years throUugh 10 YEarS . .. i ittt ittt ittt ettt et e eaeeeeeeeeeaaaeeeneens
(B) OVET LD Y AT S e i et et e ettt et e e e e et eea e e aeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeaeeeeennens
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Add: non-accrual loans not included aboVe. . ...ttt e et e et e e e e
Less: UNEATNEA I COME e v v v et e e e e e e e o e e e e e et e aaeee e e s eaaeeeeeeeeneeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeneens

Total Loans and Leases

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The allowance for loan losses reflected a balance of $1.4 million or .94 percent
of total loans at June 30, 2003 and a balance of $1.3 million or .86 percent of
total loans at December 31, 2002. The allowance is believed adequate for
possible loan losses in the future.

The provision for loan losses was $100 thousand for the first six months of 2003
compared to $59 thousand for the first six months of 2002.

Because our loan portfolio and delinquencies contains a significant number of
commercial loans with relatively large balances the deterioration of one or
several of these loans may result in a possible significant increase in loss of
interest income, higher carrying costs, and an increase in the provision for
loan losses and loan charge-offs.

We maintain an allowance for loan losses to absorb any loan losses based on our
historical experience, an evaluation of economic conditions, and regular reviews
of delinquencies and loan portfolio quality. In evaluating our allowance for
loan losses, we segment our loans into the following categories:

- Commercial (including investment property mortgages),

- Residential mortgages, and

- Consumer.
We evaluate some loans as a homogeneous group and others on an individual basis.
Commercial loans with balances exceeding $250 thousand are reviewed
individually. After our evaluation of these loans, we determine the required
allowance for loan losses based upon the following considerations:

- Historical loss levels,

- Prevailing economic conditions,

- Delinquency trends,

- Changes in the nature and volume of the portfolio, o Concentrations
of credit risk, and

- Changes in loan policies or underwriting standards.
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Management and the Board of Directors review the adequacy of the reserve on a
quarterly basis and adjustments, if needed, are made accordingly.

For the Six Months
Ending June 30,
Amounts in thousands 2003 2002
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Average loans outstanding: $149,809 $145,268
Total loans at end of period 148,280 148,517
Balance at beginning of period 1,298 1,028
Total charge-offs (36) (55)

Total recoveries 32 42

Net charge-offs (4) (13)

Provision for loan losses 100 59

Balance at end of period $ 1,394 $ 1,074

Net charge-offs as a percent of average loans outstanding during period .01% .01%
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of total loans .94% L12%

The allowance for loan losses is based on our evaluation of the allowance for
loan losses in relation to the credit risk inherent in the loan portfolio. In
establishing the amount of the provision required, management considers a
variety of factors, including but not limited to, general economic conditions,
volumes of various types of loans, collateral adequacy and potential losses from
significant borrowers. On a monthly basis, the Board of Directors and the bank's
Credit Administration Committee review information regarding specific loans and
the total loan portfolio in general in order to determine the amount to be
charged to the provision for loan losses.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

A major strength of any financial institution is a strong capital position. This
capital is very critical as it must provide growth, dividend payments to
shareholders, and absorption of unforeseen losses. Our federal regulators
provide standards that must be met. These standards measure "risk-adjusted"
assets against different categories of capital. The "risk-adjusted" assets
reflect off balance sheet items, such as commitments to make loans, and also
place balance sheet assets on a "risk" basis for collectibility. The adjusted
assets are measured against the standards of Tier I Capital and Total Qualifying
Capital. Tier I Capital is common shareholders' equity. Total Qualifying Capital
includes so-called Tier II Capital which is common shareholders' equity and the
allowance for loan and lease losses. The allowance for loan and lease losses
must be lower than or equal to common shareholders' equity to be eligible for
Total Qualifying Capital.

We exceed all minimum capital requirements as reflected in the following table:

June 30, 2003

Minimu
Calculated Standa
Ratios Ratio

Risk Based Ratios:
Tier I Capital to risk-weighted assets.......c.ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnnnn 19.34% 4.00%
Total Qualifying Capital to risk-weighted assets............. i 20.36% 8.00%
June 30, Dec
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2003

Tier I Capital tO average @SSEL S . i i i ittt teeeeeeeenneeeeeeeaneeeeenes 11.59%

We believe that the bank's current capital position and liquidity positions are
strong and that its capital position is adequate to support its operations.

Book value per share amounted to $21.16 at June 30, 2003, compared with $20.76
per share at December 31, 2002.

Cash dividends declared amounted to $0.80 per share, for the six months ended
June 30, 2003, equivalent to a dividend payout ratio of 40.06 percent, compared
with 38.58 percent for the same period in 2002. Our Board of Directors continues
to believe that cash dividends are an important component of shareholder
Additionally, certain other ratios also provide capital analysis as follows:
value and that, at the bank's current level of performance and capital, we
expect to continue our current dividend policy of a quarterly cash distribution
of earnings to our shareholders.
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CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

EVALUATION OF OUR DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES. The Securities and
Exchange Commission requires that as of the end of the period covered by this
report the CEO and the Principal Financial Officer evaluate the effectiveness of
the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Rule 13 (a)-15(e) and Rule 15 (d)-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934), and report on the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures. Accordingly, under the supervision and with
the participation of our management, including our CEO and Principal Accounting
Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period.

CEO/PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER CONCLUSIONS ABOUT THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE
DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES. Based upon their evaluation of the
disclosure controls and procedures, our CEO and Principal Accounting Officer
have; concluded that, subject to the limitations noted below, our disclosure
Controls and procedures are effective to provide reasonable assurance that
material information relating to the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries
is made known to management, including the CEO and Principal Financial Officer,
on a timely basis and particularly during the period in which this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q was being prepared.

LIMITATIONS ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF CONTROLS.

Our management, including the CEO and Principal Financial Officer, does not
expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control, will
prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the
objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control
system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the
benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the
inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if
any, within the company have been detected. These inherent limitations include
the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that
breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls
can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two
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or more people, or by management override of the control. The design of any
system of controls also is based; in part upon certain assumptions about the
likelihood of future events, that there can be no assurance that any design will
succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions;
over time, control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system,
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. While we
believe that our disclosure controls and procedures have been effective, in
light of the foregoing we intend to continue to examine and refine our
disclosure controls and procedures and to monitor ongoing developments in this
area.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROLS. There were no changes in our internal control,
over financial reporting, identified in connection with the reevaluation of such
internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period
covered by this quarterly report, that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION;

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Management and the Corporation's legal counsel are not aware of any litigation
that would have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position
of the Corporation. There are no proceedings pending other than the ordinary
routine litigation incident to the business of the Corporation and its
subsidiary, Columbia County Farmers National Bank. In addition, no material
proceedings are pending or are known to be threatened or contemplated against
the Corporation and the Bank by government authorities.

Item 2. Changes in Securities - Nothing to report.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities - Northing to report.

Item 4. Submission of matters to a Vote of Security Holders - Nothing to report.
Item 5. Other Information - None

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K - Exhibits 31.1, 31,2 and 32
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CCFNB BANCOPR, INC.
(Registrant)

By /s/ Lance O. Diehl

Lance O. Diehl
President and CEO
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Date: August 8, 2003

By /s/ Virginia D. Kocher

Virginia D. Kocher
Treasurer

Date: August 8, 2003
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Goodwill

441,129

256,491

FCC licenses

489,698

322,040

Other intangible assets, net



347,660

194,129

Other noncurrent assets, net

65,189

134,162

Total assets (D

$

1,903,151

$

1,462,225
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Current portion of debt

17,189

15,840
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Current portion of broadcast rights payable

17,937

11,935

Accounts payable

20,335

17,231

Accrued expenses

38,096
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36,307

Taxes payable

19,064

4,899

Interest payable

16,612

4,601

Other current liabilities

7,180
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5,953

Total current liabilities

136,413

97,266

Debt

1,526,830

1,220,304

Deferred tax liabilities

117,198
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44,224

Other noncurrent liabilities

51,273

43,894

Total liabilities (1

1,831,714

1,405,688

Commitments and contingencies
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Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock - $0.01 par value, 200,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding

at each of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

Class A Common stock - $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 31,291,608 and

31,172,060 shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,
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respectively

313

312

Class B Common stock - $0.01 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and

outstanding at each of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

Class C Common stock - $0.01 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and

outstanding at each of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
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Additional paid-in capital

398,116

398,029

Accumulated deficit

(332,897

)

(345,804

)

Total Nexstar Broadcasting Group, Inc. stockholders' equity

65,532
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52,537

Noncontrolling interests in consolidated variable interest entities

5,905

4,000

Total stockholders' equity

71,437

56,537

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

$

1,903,151
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$

1,462,225

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

(1) The consolidated total assets as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 include certain assets held by
consolidated VIEs of $122.9 million and $49.1 million, respectively, which are not available to be used to settle the
obligations of Nexstar. The consolidated total liabilities as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 include
certain liabilities of consolidated VIEs of $38.5 million and $17.9 million for which the creditors of the VIEs have

no recourse to the general credit of Nexstar. See Note 2 for additional information.
1
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NEXSTAR BROADCASTING GROUP, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share information, unaudited)

Three Months Ended

March 31,

2015 2014
Net revenue $203,391 $133,833
Operating expenses:
Direct operating expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization 69,685 41,849
Selling, general, and administrative expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization 57,289 41,040
Amortization of broadcast rights 14,581 8,632
Amortization of intangible assets 13,060 6,193
Depreciation 10,872 8,419
Total operating expenses 165,487 106,133
Income from operations 37,904 27,700
Interest expense, net (19,293 ) (15,170)
Other expenses (118 ) (128 )
Income before income taxes 18,493 12,402
Income tax expense (6,581 ) (5,049 )
Net income 11,912 7,353
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 995 -
Net income attributable to Nexstar Broadcasting Group, Inc. $12,907 $7,353
Net income per common share attributable to Nexstar Broadcasting Group, Inc.:
Basic $0.41 $0.24
Diluted $0.40 $0.23
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic 31,196 30,603
Diluted 32,256 31,909
Dividends declared per common share $0.19 $0.15

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NEXSTAR BROADCASTING GROUP, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2015

(in thousands, except share information, unaudited)

Noncontrolling
interests
in
Common Stock Additional consolidated’otal
Preferred
Stock Class A Class B Class C Paid-In Accumulatedvariable  Stockholders'
Shar&snouSiares AmountShafemousharemou@apital Deficit interest entiligwity
Balances as of
December 31,
2014 - $- 31,172,060 $312 - $- - $- $398,029 $(345,804) $4,000 $56,537
Stock-based
compensation
expense - - - - - - - - 2,858 - - 2,858
Exercise of stock
options - - 119,548 1 - - - - 1,464 - - 1,465
Excess tax benefit
from stock
option exercises - - - - - - - - 1,686 - - 1,686
Common stock
dividends
declared - - - - - - - - (5,921 ) - - (5,921 )
Consolidation of a
variable
interest entity - - - - - - - - - - 2,900 2,900
Net income - - - - - - - - - 12,907 995 ) 11,912
Balances as of
March 31, 2015 - $- 31,291,608 $313 - $- - $- $398,116 $(332,897 ) $5905 $71,437

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NEXSTAR BROADCASTING GROUP, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands, unaudited)

Three Months Ended

March 31,

2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $11912  $7,353
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for bad debt 453 1,015
Amortization of broadcast rights, excluding barter 5,162 2,960
Depreciation of property and equipment 10,872 8,419
Amortization of intangible assets 13,060 6,193
Loss (gain) on asset disposal, net 802 (15 )
Amortization of debt financing costs 820 647
Amortization of debt discount (premium), net 65 43
Stock-based compensation expense 2,858 1,643
Deferred income taxes 5,139 4,496
Payments for broadcast rights (5,271 ) (3,149 )
Deferred gain recognition (109 ) (109 )
Amortization of deferred representation fee incentive (264 ) (205 )
Non-cash representation contract termination fee 1,516 -
Excess tax benefit from stock option exercises (1,686 ) (274 )
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions and dispositions:
Accounts receivable 934 3,958
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,452 1,184
Other noncurrent assets 56 92
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (5,781 ) 1,528
Taxes payable 4,478 ) 141
Interest payable 12,011 8,932
Other noncurrent liabilities 103 (121 )
Net cash provided by operating activities 49,626 44,731
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (6,401 ) (3,983 )
Payments for acquisitions, net of cash acquired (459,979) (22,057)
Proceeds from disposal of a station 26,805 -
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment 877 14
Net cash used in investing activities (438,698) (26,026)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt 411,950 -
Repayments of long-term debt (104,140) (3,610 )
Payments for debt financing costs (2,920 ) (77 )
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 1,465 107
Excess tax benefit from stock option exercises 1,686 274
Common stock dividends paid (5,921 ) (4,588 )

Payments for capital lease obligations (376 ) (259 )
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Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 301,744 (8,153 )
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (87,328 ) 10,552
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 131,912 40,028
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $44.584  $50,580
Supplemental information:

Interest paid $6,397 $5,547
Income taxes paid, net of refunds $5,925 $47
Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Accrued purchases of property and equipment $1,321 $966
Noncash purchases of property and equipment $1,276 $14
Accrued debt financing costs $127 $-

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NEXSTAR BROADCASTING GROUP, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Business Operations

As of March 31, 2015, Nexstar Broadcasting Group, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (“Nexstar””) owned,
operated, programmed or provided sales and other services to 107 television stations and 36 digital multicast channels,
including those owned by variable interest entities (“VIEs”), in 58 markets in the states of Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas,
California, Colorado, Florida, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Louisiana, Maryland, Michigan, Missouri, Montana, Nevada,
New York, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virginia and Wisconsin. The stations are affiliates of
ABC (20 stations), NBC (20 stations), FOX (28 stations), CBS (17 stations), The CW (10 stations and 2 digital
multicast channels), MyNetworkTV (10 stations and 4 digital multicast channels), Telemundo (one station and one
digital multicast channel), RTV (one station), Bounce TV (9 digital multicast channels), Me-TV (9 digital multicast
channels), Estrella (6 digital multicast channels), LATV (one digital multicast channel), This TV (one digital multicast
channel), Weather Nation Utah (one digital multicast channel), Movies! (one digital multicast channel) and
News/Weather (one digital multicast channel). Through various local service agreements, Nexstar provided sales,
programming and other services to 31 stations and 6 digital multicast channels owned and/or operated by independent
third parties. Nexstar operates in one reportable television broadcasting segment. The economic characteristics,
services, production process, customer type and distribution methods for Nexstar’s operations are substantially similar
and are therefore aggregated as a single reportable segment.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Nexstar and the accounts of
independently-owned VIEs for which Nexstar is the primary beneficiary. Nexstar and the consolidated VIEs are
collectively referred to as the “Company.” Noncontrolling interests represent the VIE owners’ share of the equity in the
consolidated VIEs and are presented as a component separate from Nexstar Broadcasting Group, Inc. stockholders’
equity. All intercompany account balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Nexstar
management evaluates each arrangement that may include variable interests and determines the need to consolidate an
entity where it determines Nexstar is the primary beneficiary of a VIE in accordance with related authoritative
literature and interpretive guidance. Effective January 1, 2015, Nexstar entered into local service agreements to
provide programming and sales services to stations acquired from Communications Corporation of America (“CCA”)
and sold to Marshall Broadcasting Group, Inc. (“Marshall”’) and stations owned by White Knight Broadcasting (“White
Knight”), which were considered as VIEs as of that date.

Certain assets of consolidated VIEs are not available to settle the obligations of Nexstar and there are certain liabilities
of consolidated VIEs for which the creditors of the VIEs do not have recourse to the general credit of Nexstar. In
previous filings, the Company presented such amounts as separate amounts on its Consolidated Balance Sheets. The
Company has elected to present these amounts in this and future filings in a combined footnote on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, with footnote disclosure of the related carrying amounts and classification, as follows (in thousands):
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March December
31, 31,
2015 2014
Current assets $3,196 $12 M
Property and equipment, net 4,503 -
Goodwill 18,451 697 )
FCC licenses 74,312 46,727

Other intangible assets, net 21,419 1,605 @
Other noncurrent assets, net 974 -

Total assets 122,855 49,131
Current liabilities 11,370 7,852

Noncurrent liabilities 27,132 10,018
Total liabilities $38,502 $17,870

(1) These balances relate to Parker Broadcasting of Colorado, LLC and were previously not presented separately on
the Consolidated Balance Sheet. This correction is not considered material to the Consolidated Financial
Statements as of December 31, 2014.
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Liquidity

Nexstar is highly leveraged, which makes it vulnerable to changes in general economic conditions. Nexstar’s ability to
repay or refinance its debt will depend on, among other things, financial, business, market, competitive and other
conditions, many of which are beyond Nexstar’s control.

Interim Financial Statements

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as of March 31, 2015 and for the three months ended March 31,
2015 and 2014 are unaudited. However, in the opinion of management, such financial statements include all
adjustments (consisting solely of normal recurring adjustments) necessary for the fair statement of the financial
information included herein in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“U.S. GAAP”) and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”). The preparation of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Results of operations for interim
periods are not necessarily indicative of results for the full year. These Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes included in Nexstar’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014. The balance sheet as of December 31, 2014 has
been derived from the audited financial statements as of that date, but does not include all of the information and
footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements.

Variable Interest Entities

The Company may determine that an entity is a VIE as a result of local service agreements entered into with the
owner-operator of an entity. The term local service agreements generally refers to a contract between two separately
owned television stations serving the same market, whereby the owner-operator of one station contracts with the
owner-operator of the other station to provide it with administrative, sales and other services required for the operation
of its station. Nevertheless, the owner-operator of each station retains control and responsibility for the operation of its
station, including ultimate responsibility over all programming broadcast on its station. A local service agreement can
be (1) a time brokerage agreement (“TBA”) which allows Nexstar to program most of a station’s broadcast time, sell the
station’s advertising time and retain the advertising revenue generated in exchange for monthly payments, based on the
station’s monthly operating expenses, (2) a shared services agreement (“SSA”) which allows the Nexstar station in the
market to provide services including news production, technical maintenance and security, in exchange for Nexstar’s
right to receive certain payments as described in the SSA, or (3) a joint sales agreement (“JSA”’) which permits Nexstar
to sell certain of the station’s advertising time and retain a percentage of the related revenue, as described in the JSA.

Consolidated VIEs

Mission Broadcasting, Inc. (“Mission”), Marshall and Parker Broadcasting of Colorado, LLC (‘“Parker”) are consolidated
by Nexstar because Nexstar is deemed under U.S. GAAP to have controlling financial interests in these entities for
financial reporting purposes as a result of (1) local service agreements Nexstar has with these stations, (2) Nexstar’s
guarantees of the obligations incurred under Mission’s and Marshall’s senior secured credit facilities (see Note 6), (3)
Nexstar having power over significant activities affecting these entities’ economic performance, including budgeting

for advertising revenue, certain advertising sales and, for Mission and Parker, hiring and firing of sales force personnel
and (4) purchase options granted by Mission which permit Nexstar to acquire the assets and assume the liabilities of
each Mission station, subject to Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) consent.

Effective January 1, 2015, upon Nexstar’s acquisition of CCA, Nexstar assumed the contractual obligations under
CCA’s local service agreements with White Knight, the owner of six television stations in the Baton Rouge, Louisiana,
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Shreveport, Louisiana and Tyler-Longview, Texas markets. Nexstar evaluated the business arrangements with White
Knight and has determined that it has a variable interest in this entity. Nexstar has also determined that it is the
primary beneficiary of the variable interest because it has the ultimate power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the economic performance of White Knight, including management advice and consultation in
broadcast matters, the ability to sell certain advertising on the White Knight stations, the production of the White
Knight stations’ news and other programming, and oversight and control of sales management personnel. Additionally,
Nexstar assumed CCA’s options to acquire the assets and assume the liabilities of each White Knight station, subject to
FCC consent. Simultaneous with Nexstar’s acquisition of CCA, Nexstar sold the assets of CCA stations KPEJ and
KMSS to Marshall and, as discussed above, Nexstar is the primary beneficiary of Marshall. Therefore, Nexstar
consolidated White Knight, KPEJ and KMSS as of January 1, 2015. See Note 3 for additional information with
respect to these transactions.
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The following table summarizes the various local service agreements Nexstar had in effect as of March 31, 2015 with

Mission, Marshall, Parker and White Knight:

Service Agreements Owner Mission Stations
TBA Only Mission ~ WEXP and KHMT
Parker KFQX

SSA & JSA Mission  KJTL, KIBO-LP, KLRT, KASN, KOLR, KCIT, KCPN-LP, KAMC, KRBC,
KSAN, WUTR, WAWYV, WYOU, KODE, WTVO, KTVE, WTVW and WVNY

Marshall KLJB, KPEJ and KMSS
White
Knight

WVLA, KZUP, KFXK, KFXL, KLPN, KSHV

Nexstar’s ability to receive cash from Mission, Marshall, Parker and White Knight is governed by the local service
agreements. Under these agreements, Nexstar has received substantially all of the consolidated VIEs’ available cash,
after satisfaction of operating costs and debt obligations. Nexstar anticipates it will continue to receive substantially all
of the consolidated VIEs’ available cash, after satisfaction of operating costs and debt obligations. In compliance with
FCC regulations for all the parties, Mission, Marshall, Parker and White Knight maintain complete responsibility for
and control over programming, finances, personnel and operations of their stations.

The carrying amounts and classification of the assets and liabilities of the VIEs mentioned above which have been
included in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows (in thousands):

March December

31, 31,

2015 2014
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $5,662 $1,440
Accounts receivable, net 13,645 7,594
Deferred tax assets, net 9,474 9,389
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,709 2,657
Total current assets 32,490 21,080
Property and equipment, net 32,332 26,235
Goodwill 70,081 35,308
FCC licenses 74,312 46,727
Other intangible assets, net 62,368 30,333
Other noncurrent assets, net 24,561 64,858
Total assets $296,144 $224,541
Current liabilities:
Current portion of debt $5,561 $5,137
Interest payable 28 28
Other current liabilities 11,372 7,852
Total current liabilities 16,961 13,017
Debt 284,053 289,161
Other noncurrent liabilities 27,133 10,018
Total liabilities $328,147 $312,196

Non-Consolidated VIEs

Nexstar has an outsourcing agreement with Cunningham Broadcasting Corporation (“Cunningham’), which continues
through December 31, 2017. Under the outsourcing agreement, Nexstar provides certain engineering, production,
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sales and administrative services for WYZZ, the FOX affiliate in the Peoria, Illinois market, through WMBD, the
Nexstar television station in that market. During the term of the outsourcing agreement, Nexstar retains the
broadcasting revenue and related expenses of WYZZ and is obligated to pay a monthly fee based on the combined
operating cash flow of WMBD and WYZZ, as defined in the agreement.
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Nexstar has determined that it has a variable interest in WYZZ. Nexstar has evaluated its arrangements with
Cunningham and has determined that it is not the primary beneficiary of the variable interest in WYZZ because it does
not have the ultimate power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of the
station, including developing the annual operating budget, programming and oversight and control of sales
management personnel. Therefore, Nexstar has not consolidated this station under authoritative guidance related to the
consolidation of VIEs. Under the outsourcing agreement for WYZZ, Nexstar pays for certain operating expenses, and
therefore may have unlimited exposure to any potential operating losses. Nexstar’s management believes that Nexstar’s
minimum exposure to loss under the WYZZ outsourcing agreement consists of the fees paid to Cunningham.
Additionally, Nexstar indemnifies the owner of WYZZ from and against all liability and claims arising out of or
resulting from its activities, acts or omissions in connection with the agreement. The maximum potential amount of
future payments Nexstar could be required to make for such indemnification is undeterminable at this time.

As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, Nexstar had balances in accounts payable of $0.1 million and $0.5
million, respectively, for fees under this arrangement and had receivables for advertising aired on these stations of
$0.5 million and $0.7 million, respectively. Fees incurred under this arrangement of $0.1 million and $0.3 million
were included in direct operating expenses in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three
months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses
approximate fair value due to their short-term nature. See Note 6 for fair value disclosures related to the Company’s
debt.

Income Per Share

Basic income per share is computed by dividing the net income attributable to Nexstar by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted income per share is computed using the
weighted-average number of common shares and potentially dilutive common shares outstanding during the period.
Potentially dilutive common shares are calculated using the treasury stock method. They consist of stock options and
restricted stock units outstanding during the period and reflect the potential dilution that could occur if common stock
were issued upon exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted stock units. The following table shows the
amounts used in computing the Company’s diluted shares (in thousands):

Three Months

Ended

March 31,

2015 2014
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 31,196 30,603
Dilutive effect of equity incentive plan instruments 1,060 1,306
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 32,256 31,909

Stock options and restricted stock units to acquire Class A common stock excluded from the computation of diluted
earnings per share were comprised of a weighted average of 1,043,000 shares and 621,000 shares for the three months
ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, because their impact would have been antidilutive.

Basis of Presentation
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Certain prior year financial statement amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
These reclassifications had no effect on net income or stockholders’ equity as previously reported.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which
updates the accounting guidance on revenue recognition. This standard is intended to provide a more robust
framework for addressing revenue issues, improve comparability of revenue recognition practices and improve
disclosure requirements. The standard is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December
15, 2016, with a proposed one year delay. Transition to the new guidance may be done using either a full or modified
retrospective method. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the provisions of the accounting standard
update.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-02, Consolidation (Topic 810) - Amendments to the Consolidation
Analysis, to improve certain areas of consolidation guidance for reporting organizations (i.e., public, private and
not-for-profit) that are required to evaluate whether to consolidate certain legal entities such as limited partnerships,
limited liability corporations, and securitization structures (e.g., collateralized debt/loan obligations). All legal entities
are subject to reevaluation under the revised consolidation model. Specifically, the amendments (1) eliminate the
presumption that a general partner should consolidate a limited partnership, (2) eliminate the indefinite deferral of
FASB Statement No. 167, thereby reducing the number of VIE consolidation models from four to two (including the
limited partnership consolidation model), (3) clarify when fees paid to a decision maker should be a factor to include
in the consolidation of VIEs, (4) amend the guidance for assessing how related party relationships affect VIE
consolidation analysis and (5) exclude certain money market funds from the consolidation guidance. The amendments
in this accounting standard are effective for public business entities for interim and annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2015. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect the implementation of this standard to
have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, Interest, Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the
Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, which requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be
presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability. The amendments in
this accounting standard are effective for interim and annual periods ending after December 15, 2015, with early
application permitted. The Company does not expect this guidance to have a significant impact on its financial
statements, other than a change in the financial statement classification of debt issuance costs. As of March 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014, $19.1 million and $17.0 million, respectively, of net debt financing costs were included in
other noncurrent assets in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. Under the new guidance, the carrying amount
of debt financing costs would reduce the Company’s total debt.
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3. Acquisitions and Dispositions
CCA

Effective January 1, 2015, Nexstar completed the acquisition of the outstanding equity of privately-held CCA from SP
ComCorp LLC (“SP ComCorp”), NexPoint Credit Strategies Fund (“NexPoint”) and Highland Floating Rate
Opportunities Fund (“Highland”) and assumed CCA’s rights and obligations under its existing local service agreements
with White Knight, for $278.3 million in cash, less a $0.2 million receivable from the sellers representing working
capital adjustment. CCA and White Knight, collectively, owned 19 television stations in 10 markets.

A deposit of $27.0 million was paid to CCA in April 2013 upon signing the stock purchase agreement. Nexstar paid
the $251.3 million remaining purchase price at closing funded by a combination of cash on hand, term loans borrowed
in October 2014 and borrowings from its revolving credit facility in January 2015 (See Note 6). The transaction costs
relating to this acquisition, including legal and professional fees of $0.4 million, were expensed as incurred during the
three months ended March 31, 2015. Additionally, employment charges of $0.5 million were incurred and included in
the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Simultaneous with Nexstar’s acquisition of CCA, Nexstar sold the assets of CCA stations KPEJ and KMSS to
Marshall for $43.3 million in cash, funded primarily by a $43.0 million deposit made in December 2014 arising from
Marshall’s term loan. Nexstar also entered into local service agreements with Marshall to perform certain sales and
other services for these stations. Additionally, Nexstar sold the assets of CCA station WEVYV, the CBS and FOX
affiliate serving the Evansville, Indiana market, to Bayou City Broadcasting Evansville, Inc. (“BCB”) for $26.8 million
in cash, plus a $0.8 million cash sale of certain real estate properties previously owned by Nexstar (not acquired from
CCA). Nexstar recognized a net loss on disposal of $0.5 million in connection with this transaction. There is no
relationship between Nexstar and BCB or their respective stations after the sale.

The above transactions allow the Company entrance into 7 new markets and create duopolies in 6 markets. The
stations impacted are as follows:

Market Market Rank  Station Affiliation
Nexstar:
Harlingen-Weslaco-Brownsville-McAllen, TX 86 KVEO NBC/Estrella
Waco-Temple-Bryan, TX 87 KWKT  FOX/MyNetworkTV/
Estrella
KYLE
FOX/MyNetworkTV/
Estrella
El Paso, TX 91 KTSM NBC/Estrella
Baton Rouge, LA 93 WGMB FOX
WBRL The CW
Tyler-Longview, TX 108 KETK NBC/Estrella
Lafayette, LA 124 KADN FOX

KLAF MyNetworkTV
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Alexandria, LA
Marshall:
Shreveport, LA
Odessa-Midland, TX
White Knight:

Baton Rouge, LA

Tyler-Longview, TX

Shreveport, LA
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179

83
146
93

108

83

WNTZ

KMSS
KPEJ

WVLA

KZUP
KFXK

KFXL

KLPN
KSHV

FOX/MyNetworkTV

FOX
FOX/Estrella

NBC

RTV
FOX

FOX

MyNetworkTV
MyNetworkTV
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As discussed in Note 2, Nexstar is the primary beneficiary of the variable interests in White Knight and Marshall and
has consolidated White Knight and the stations Nexstar sold to Marshall, KPEJ and KMSS, into Nexstar’s Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements beginning January 1, 2015. Accordingly, all effects of the sale between Nexstar
and Marshall have been eliminated in consolidation.

The consolidation of the assets and liabilities of White Knight into Nexstar resulted in a noncontrolling interest of $2.9
million, representing the fair value of interest held by the owners as of January 1, 2015, estimated by applying the
income approach valuation technique.

The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the CCA acquisition (net of the effects of
the sale of WEVYV to BCB), including the consolidation of the assets and liabilities of White Knight, KPEJ and
KMSS, are as follows (in thousands):

Cash $1,847
Accounts receivable 19,624
Broadcast rights 10,233
Deferred tax assets 247
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 118
Property and equipment 25,647
FCC licenses 71,465
Network affiliation agreements 86,219
Other intangible assets 7,818
Goodwill 119,780
Other assets 59

Total assets acquired 343,057
Less: Broadcast rights payable (10,467 )
Less: Accounts payable and accrued expenses (4,685 )
Less: Taxes payable (18,613)
Less: Deferred tax liabilities (55,454)
Less: Other noncurrent liabilities 221 )
Less: Noncontrolling interest in a consolidated VIE (2,900 )
Net assets acquired $250,717

The fair value assigned to goodwill is attributable to future expense reductions utilizing management’s leverage in
operating costs. The goodwill, FCC licenses and network affiliation agreements are not deductible for tax purposes.
The intangible assets related to the network affiliation agreements are amortized over 15 years and other intangible
assets are amortized over an estimated weighted average useful life of five years.

The acquired entities’ net revenue of $24.4 million and operating income of $4.7 million from the date of acquisition to
March 31, 2015 have been included in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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KASW

Effective January 29, 2015, Nexstar acquired the assets of KASW, the CW affiliate in the Phoenix, Arizona market

from Meredith Corporation (“Meredith”) and SagamoreHill of Phoenix, LLC (“SagamoreHill”’) for $71.3 million in cash,
less a $0.5 million receivable from the sellers representing working capital adjustment. The acquisition allows Nexstar
entrance into this market and the purchase price was funded through Nexstar’s $275.0 million 6.125% senior

unsecured notes (“6.125% Notes”) and borrowings under Nexstar’s existing credit facility (See Note 6). No significant
transaction costs were incurred in connection with this acquisition during the three months ended March 31, 2015.

The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition are as follows (in thousands):

Accounts receivable $3,544
Broadcast rights 8,771
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 24
Property and equipment 987
FCC licenses 35,566
Other intangible assets 713
Goodwill 32,254
Total assets acquired 81,859
Less: Broadcast rights payable (10,291)

Less: Accounts payable and accrued expenses (790 )

Net assets acquired $70,778
The fair value assigned to goodwill is attributable to future expense reductions utilizing management’s leverage in
programming and other station operating costs. The goodwill and FCC licenses are deductible for tax purposes. The
intangible assets related to the network affiliation agreements are amortized over 15 years. Other intangible assets are
amortized over an estimated weighted average useful life of 1.5 years.

KASW?’s net revenue of $3.5 million and operating income of $1.4 million from the date of acquisition to March 31,
2015 have been included in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Yashi

On February 2, 2015, Nexstar acquired the outstanding equity of Yashi, a local digital video advertising and targeted
programmatic technology platform, for $33.4 million in cash, less a $0.4 million receivable from the sellers
representing working capital adjustment. The acquisition is expected to broaden Nexstar’s digital media portfolio with
technologies and offerings that are complementary to Nexstar’s digital businesses and multi-screen strategies. The
purchase price was funded through Nexstar’s 6.125% Notes and borrowings under Nexstar’s existing credit facility (See
Note 6). No significant transaction costs were incurred in connection with this acquisition during the three months
ended March 31, 2015.

The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition are as follows (in thousands):

Cash $1,472
Accounts receivable 8,449
Property and equipment 114
Software and other intangible assets 22,321
Goodwill 16,904
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Other assets 15
Total assets acquired 49,275
Less: Accounts payable and accrued expenses (7,681 )
Less: Deferred tax liabilities (8,588)
Net assets acquired $33,006

The fair value assigned to goodwill is attributable to future expense reductions utilizing management’s leverage in
operating costs. Goodwill and Software and other intangible assets are not deductible for tax purposes. Software and
other intangible assets are amortized over an estimated weighted average useful life of four years.

Yashi’s net revenue of $5.8 million and operating income of $0.4 million from the date of acquisition to March 31,
2015 have been included in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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KLAS

On February 13, 2015, Nexstar acquired the outstanding equity of KLAS, LLC, the owner of television station KLAS,
the CBS affiliate serving the Las Vegas, Nevada market, from Landmark Television, LLC and Landmark Media
Enterprises, LLC, for $150.4 million in cash, plus a $0.6 million payable to the sellers representing working capital
adjustment. The acquisition allows Nexstar entrance into this market and the purchase price was funded through
Nexstar’s 6.125% Notes and borrowings under Nexstar’s existing credit facility (See Note 6). Transaction costs relating
to this acquisition, including legal and professional fees of $0.1 million, were expensed as incurred during the three
months ended March 31, 2015.

The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition are as follows (in thousands):

Cash $18
Accounts receivable 6,474
Broadcast rights 58
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 438
Property and equipment 19,154
FCC licenses 60,627
Network affiliation agreements 49,485
Other intangible assets 35
Goodwill 15,700
Total assets of a consolidated VIE 151,989
Less: Broadcast rights payable (58 )
Less: Accounts payable and accrued expenses (838 )
Less: Other current liabilities (117 )
Net assets acquired $150,976

The fair value assigned to goodwill is attributable to future expense reductions utilizing management’s leverage in
programming and other station operating costs. The goodwill and FCC licenses are deductible for tax purposes. The
intangible assets related to the network affiliation agreements are amortized over 15 years. Other intangible assets are
amortized over an estimated weighted average useful life of 12 years.

KLAS’ net revenue of $4.8 million and operating income of $1.3 million from the date of acquisition to March 31,
2015 have been included in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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Unaudited Pro Forma Information

The acquisitions of KASW, Yashi and KLAS are not significant for financial reporting purposes, both individually
and in aggregate. Therefore, pro forma information has not been provided for these acquisitions. The following
unaudited pro forma information has been presented for the periods indicated as if the 2014 acquisitions of Internet
Broadcasting Systems, Inc. (“IBS”) and Grant Company, Inc. (“Grant”) had occurred on January 1, 2013 and the 2015
acquisition of CCA and the related consolidation of VIEs had occurred on January 1, 2014 (in thousands):

Three Months Ended

March 31,

2015 2014
Net revenue $203,391 $176,890
Income before income taxes 22,283 17,114
Net income 14,259 9,709
Net income attributable to Nexstar 14,661 9,465
Net income per common share attributable to Nexstar - basic 0.47 0.31
Net income per common share attributable to Nexstar - diluted 0.45 0.30

The above selected unaudited pro forma information is presented for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
indicative of results of operations in future periods or results that would have been achieved had Nexstar owned IBS,
Grant and CCA during the specified periods.

Please refer to Nexstar’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 for more information
with respect to IBS and Grant.

Pending Acquisition
KCWI

On October 24, 2014, Nexstar entered into a definitive agreement to acquire the assets of KCWI, the CW affiliate in
the Des Moines-Ames, lowa market, from Pappas Telecasting of Iowa, LLC (“Pappas”) for $3.5 million, subject to
adjustments for working capital. A deposit of $0.2 million was paid upon signing the purchase agreement. This
acquisition is subject to bankruptcy approval and other customary conditions, and Nexstar expects it to close in the
second quarter of 2015.
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4. Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible assets subject to amortization consisted of the following (in thousands):

Estimated March 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

useful

life, Accumulated Accumulated

in years  Gross Amortization Net Gross Amortization Net

Network affiliation
agreements 15 $614,592 $ (316,903 ) $297,689 $478,888 $ (310,097 ) $168,791
Other definite-lived

intangible assets 1-15 82,939 (32,968 ) 49,971 52,052 (26,714 ) 25,338
Other intangible assets $697,531 $(349,871 ) $347,660 $530,940 $ (336,811 ) $194,129

The increases in network affiliation agreements and other definite-lived intangible assets relate to Nexstar’s
acquisitions and VIE consolidations, as discussed in Notes 2 and 3.

The following table presents the Company’s estimate of amortization expense for the remainder of 2015, each of the
five succeeding years ended December 31 and thereafter for definite-lived intangible assets as of March 31, 2015 (in
thousands):

Remainder of 2015 $32,696

2016 39,068
2017 36,418
2018 29,315
2019 26,440
2020 21,793
Thereafter 161,930
$347,660

The amounts recorded to goodwill and FCC licenses were as follows (in thousands):

Goodwill FCC Licenses
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Impairment  Net Gross Impairment  Net

Balances as of December 31, 2014 $302,482 $ (45,991 ) $256,491 $371,461 $ (49,421 ) $322,040
Acquisitions and consolidation

of VIEs (See Notes 2 and 3) 184,638 - 184,638 167,658 - 167,658
Balances as of March 31, 2015 $487,120 $ (45,991 ) $441,129 $539,119 $ (49,421 ) $489,698
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Indefinite-lived intangible assets are not subject to amortization, but are tested for impairment annually or whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that such assets might be impaired. As of March 31, 2015, the Company
did not identify any events that would trigger impairment assessment.

5. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consisted of the following (in thousands):

March  December

31, 31,

2015 2014
Compensation and related taxes $9,299 $9,918
Sales commissions 4,056 3,108
Employee benefits 2,425 2,410
Property taxes 1,442 886
Other 20,874 20,485

$38,096 $ 36,807
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6. Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following (in thousands):

December

March 31, 31,

2015 2014
Term loans, net of discount of $1,639 and $1,725, respectively $701,450 $705,054
Revolving loans 42,000 5,500
6.875% Senior unsecured notes due 2020, including premium of $569 and $590,
respectively 525,569 525,590
6.125% Senior unsecured notes due 2022 275,000 -

1,544,019 1,236,144

Less: current portion (17,189 ) (15,840 )

$1,526,830 $1,220,304
2015 Transactions

On January 29, 2015, Nexstar completed the issuance and sale of $275.0 million 6.125% Notes at par. The proceeds
from these notes were used to partially finance acquisitions and to pay for related fees and expenses (See Note 3).
Interest on the 6.125% Notes is payable semiannually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year
commencing on August 15, 2015. The notes are senior unsecured obligations of Nexstar and are guaranteed by
Mission and certain of Nexstar’s and Mission’s future 100% owned subsidiaries, subject to certain customary release
provisions. The notes will mature on February 15, 2022.

The 6.125% Notes are senior obligations of Nexstar and Mission but junior to the secured debt, including Nexstar’s,
Mission’s and Marshall’s senior secured credit facilities to the extent of the value of the assets securing such debt. The
6.125% Notes rank equal to the 6.875% senior unsecured notes (“6.875% Notes”).

On January 30, 2015, Mission repaid the outstanding principal balance under its revolving credit facility of $5.5
million.

In January and February 2015, Nexstar borrowed a total of $134.9 million under its revolving credit facility, less
repayments of $94.9 million during the period. The net proceeds from these borrowings were used to partially finance
the acquisitions discussed in Note 3. In April 2015, Nexstar repaid the outstanding principal balance under its
revolving credit facility of $30.0 million funded by cash on hand.

In January and March 2015, Marshall borrowed a total of $2.0 million under its revolving credit facility.

In March 2015, Nexstar, Mission and Marshall paid the contractual maturities under their senior secured credit
facilities of $2.5 million, $0.5 million and $0.7 million, respectively.

Unused Commitments and Borrowing Availability
The Company had $63.0 million of total unused revolving loan commitments under its amended senior secured credit
facilities, all of which was available for borrowing, based on the covenant calculations as of March 31, 2015. The

Company’s ability to access funds under its senior secured credit facilities depends, in part, on its compliance with
certain financial covenants. In April 2015, Nexstar repaid the outstanding principal balance under its revolving credit
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facility of $30.0 million. As of March 31, 2015, Nexstar was in compliance with all of its covenants.
Collateralization and Guarantees of Debt

The Company’s senior secured credit facilities are collateralized by a security interest in substantially all the combined
assets, excluding FCC licenses and the other assets of consolidated VIEs unavailable to creditors of Nexstar (See Note
2). Nexstar guarantees full payment of all obligations incurred under the Mission and Marshall senior secured credit
facilities in the event of their default. Similarly, Mission and Marshall are guarantors of the Nexstar senior secured
credit facility. Mission is also a guarantor of Nexstar’s 6.875% Notes and 6.125% Notes. Marshall is not a guarantor of
either the 6.875% Notes or the 6.125% Notes. White Knight and Parker do not guarantee Nexstar’s debt.
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Fair Value of Debt

The aggregate carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company’s debt were as follows (in thousands):

March 31, 2015
Carrying Fair
Amount  Value

Term loans() $701,450 $697,180

December 31, 2014
Carrying Fair
Amount  Value
$705,054 $697,420

42,000 41,131 5,500 5,386
525,569 557,813 525,590 547,313
275,000 283,938 - -

Revolving loans™)
6.875% Senior unsecured notes®
6.125% Senior unsecured notes®

(DThe fair value of senior secured credit facilities is computed based on borrowing rates currently available to the
Company for bank loans with similar terms and average maturities. These fair value measurements are considered
Level 3, as significant inputs to the fair value calculation are unobservable in the market.

(2 The fair value of the Company’s fixed rate debt is estimated based on bid prices obtained from an investment
banking firm that regularly makes a market for these financial instruments. These fair value measurements are
considered Level 2, as quoted market prices are available for low volume trading of these securities.

7. FCC Regulatory Matters

Television broadcasting is subject to the jurisdiction of the FCC under the Communications Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Communications Act”). The Communications Act prohibits the operation of television broadcasting stations
except under a license issued by the FCC, and empowers the FCC, among other things, to issue, revoke and modify
broadcasting licenses, determine the location of television stations, regulate the equipment used by television stations,
adopt regulations to carry out the provisions of the Communications Act and impose penalties for the violation of such
regulations. The FCC’s ongoing rule making proceedings could have a significant future impact on the television
industry and on the operation of the Company’s stations and the stations to which it provides services. In addition, the
U.S. Congress may act to amend the Communications Act or adopt other legislation in a manner that could impact the
Company’s stations, the stations to which it provides services and the television broadcast industry in general.

The FCC has adopted rules with respect to the final conversion of existing low power and television translator stations
to digital operations. The FCC has established a September 1, 2015 deadline by which low power and television
translator stations must cease analog operations, but it recently has suspended that deadline pending action in an
ongoing rulemaking proceeding.

Media Ownership

The FCC is required to review its media ownership rules every four years and to eliminate those rules it finds no
longer serve the “public interest, convenience and necessity.”

In March 2014, the FCC initiated its 2014 quadrennial review with the adoption of a Further Notice of Proposed
Rulemaking (“FNPRM”). The FNPRM incorporates the record of the uncompleted 2010 quadrennial review proceeding
and solicits comment on proposed changes to the media ownership rules. Among the proposals in the FNPRM are (1)
retention of the current local television ownership rule (but with modifications to certain service contour definitions to
conform to digital television broadcasting), (2) elimination of the radio/television cross-ownership rule, (3)
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elimination of the newspaper/radio cross-ownership rule, and (4) retention of the newspaper/television
cross-ownership rule, while considering waivers of that rule in certain circumstances. The FNPRM also proposes to
define a category of sharing agreements designated as SSAs between television stations, and to require television
stations to disclose those SSAs. Comments and reply comments on the FNPRM were filed in the third quarter of 2014.

Concurrently with its adoption of the FNPRM, the FCC also adopted a rule making television JSAs attributable to the
seller of advertising time in certain circumstances. Under this rule, where a party owns a full-power television station
in a market and sells more than 15% of the weekly advertising time for another, non-owned station in the same market
under a JSA, that party will be deemed to have an attributable interest in the latter station for purposes of the local
television ownership rule. Parties to newly attributable JSAs that do not comply with the local television ownership
rule were given two years to modify or terminate their JSAs to come into compliance. Congressional legislation
signed into law in late 2014 extended this compliance period for an additional six months, and the compliance
deadline is now December 19, 2016. Although the FCC has indicated that it will consider waivers of the new JSA
attribution rule, the FCC thus far has not granted any such waiver and has provided little guidance on what factors
must be present for a waiver to be granted. Various parties, including Nexstar (and Mission, which has intervened),
have appealed this new rule to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit. If Nexstar is required to amend or
terminate its existing agreements with Mission and others, the Company could have a reduction in revenue and could
incur increased costs if it is unable to successfully implement alternative arrangements that are as beneficial as the
existing JSAs.
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Spectrum

The FCC has initiated various proceedings to assess the availability of spectrum to meet future wireless broadband
needs. The FCC’s March 2010 “National Broadband Plan” recommends the reallocation of 120 megahertz of the
spectrum currently used for broadcast television for wireless broadband use. The FCC has thus far adopted rules
permitting television stations to share a single 6 megahertz channel and requested comment on proposals that include,
among other things, whether to add new frequency allocations in the television bands for licensed fixed and mobile
wireless uses and whether to implement technical rule modifications to improve the viability of certain channels that
are underutilized by digital television stations. In February 2012, the U.S. Congress adopted legislation authorizing the
FCC to conduct an incentive auction whereby television broadcasters could voluntarily relinquish their spectrum in
exchange for consideration. In June 2014, the FCC released a Report and Order in which it adopted a framework for
the auction. This Report and Order is the subject of a pending court appeal. In December 2014, the FCC released a
public notice proposing certain procedures that the FCC will follow in the incentive auction and the subsequent
“repacking” of broadcast television spectrum. Comments on this public notice were filed in the first quarter of 2015.
The FCC is deciding additional issues related to the incentive auction, including still-outstanding technical issues, in
other proceedings. The FCC has stated its intention to conduct the incentive auction in 2016. The reallocation of
television spectrum for wireless broadband use will require some television stations to change channel or otherwise
modify their technical facilities. Future steps to reallocate television spectrum to broadband use may be to the
detriment of the Company’s investment in digital facilities, could require substantial additional investment to continue
current operations, and may require viewers to invest in additional equipment or subscription services to continue
receiving broadcast television signals. The Company cannot predict the timing or results of television spectrum
reallocation efforts or their impact to its business.

Retransmission Consent

On March 3, 2011, the FCC initiated a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking to reexamine its rules (i) governing the
requirements for good faith negotiations between multichannel video program distributors (“MVPDs”) and broadcasters,
including implementing a prohibition on one station negotiating retransmission consent terms for another station

under a local service agreement; (ii) for providing advance notice to consumers in the event of dispute; and (iii) to
extend certain cable-only obligations to all MVPDs. The FCC also asked for comment on eliminating the network
non-duplication and syndicated exclusivity protection rules, which may permit MVPDs to import out-of-market
television stations during a retransmission consent dispute.

In March 2014, the FCC adopted a rule that prohibits joint retransmission consent negotiation between television
stations in the same market which are not commonly owned and which are ranked among the top four stations in the
market in terms of audience share. This new rule requires Nexstar, Mission and other independent third parties with
which Nexstar has local service agreements to separately negotiate retransmission consent agreements for certain of
their stations. This new rule is now effective and is the subject of a pending court appeal. On December 5, 2014,
federal legislation extended the joint negotiation prohibition to all non-commonly owned television stations in a
market. This legislation also directed the FCC to commence a rulemaking to “review its totality of the circumstances
test for good faith [retransmission consent] negotiations.” The FCC has not yet commenced this proceeding, and we
cannot predict its outcome.

Concurrently with its adoption of the prohibition on certain joint retransmission consent negotiation, the FCC also
adopted a further notice of proposed rulemaking which seeks comment on the elimination or modification of the
network non-duplication and syndicated exclusivity rules. The FCC’s prohibition on certain joint retransmission
consent negotiations and its possible elimination or modification of the network non-duplication and syndicated
exclusivity protection rules may affect the Company’s ability to sustain its current level of retransmission consent
revenues or grow such revenues in the future and could have an adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial
condition and results of operations. The Company cannot predict the resolution of the FCC’s network non-duplication
and syndicated exclusivity proposals, or the impact of these proposals or the FCC’s new prohibition on certain joint
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negotiations, on its business.

Further, certain online video distributors and other over-the-top video distributors (“OTTDs”) have begun streaming
broadcast programming over the Internet. In June 2014, the U.S. Supreme Court held that an OTTD’s retransmissions
of broadcast television programs without the consent of the broadcast station violate the copyright holders’ exclusive
right to perform their works publicly as provided under the Copyright Act. In December 2014, the FCC issued a

Notice of Proposed Rulemaking proposing to interpret the term “MVPD” to encompass OTTDs that make available for
purchase multiple streams of video programming distributed at a prescheduled time, and seeking comment on the
effects of applying MVPD rules to such OTTDs. Comments and reply comments were filed in the first and second
quarters of 2015 and we cannot predict the outcome of the proceeding. However, if the FCC ultimately determines

that an OTTD is not an MVPD, or declines to apply certain rules governing MVPDs to OTTDs, our business and
results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.
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8. Commitments and Contingencies
Guarantees of Mission and Marshall Debt

Nexstar guarantees full payment of all obligations incurred under Mission’s and Marshall’s senior secured credit
facilities. In the event that Mission and/or Marshall are unable to repay amounts due, Nexstar will be obligated to
repay such amounts. The maximum potential amount of future payments that Nexstar would be required to make
under this guarantee would be generally limited to the amount of borrowings outstanding. As of March 31, 2015,
Mission had a maximum commitment of $237.2 million under its senior secured credit facility, of which $229.2
million of debt was outstanding, and Marshall had used all of its commitment and had outstanding obligations of
$60.4 million.

Indemnification Obligations

In connection with certain agreements into which the Company enters in the normal course of its business, including
local service agreements, business acquisitions and borrowing arrangements, the Company enters into contractual
arrangements under which the Company agrees to indemnify the other party to such arrangement from losses, claims
and damages incurred by the indemnified party for certain events as defined within the particular contract. Such
indemnification obligations may not be subject to maximum loss clauses and the maximum potential amount of future
payments the Company could be required to make under these indemnification arrangements may be unlimited.
Historically, payments made related to these indemnifications have been immaterial and the Company has not
incurred significant costs to defend lawsuits or settle claims related to these indemnification agreements.

Litigation
From time to time, the Company is involved with claims that arise out of the normal course of its business. In the

opinion of management, any resulting liability with respect to these claims would not have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

19

70



Edgar Filing: CCFNB BANCORP INC - Form 10-Q

9. Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

The following condensed consolidating financial information presents the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the Company, including its 100%, directly or indirectly, owned subsidiaries and its consolidated VIEs.
This information is presented in lieu of separate financial statements and other related disclosures pursuant to
Regulation S-X Rule 3-10 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, “Financial Statements of Guarantors
and Issuers of Guaranteed Securities Registered or Being Registered.”

The Nexstar column presents the parent company’s financial information (not including any subsidiaries). Nexstar
owns 100% of Nexstar Finance Holdings, Inc. (“Nexstar Holdings”), which owns 100% of Nexstar Broadcasting, Inc.
(“Nexstar Broadcasting”). The Nexstar Holdings column presents its financial information (not including any
subsidiaries). The Nexstar Broadcasting column presents its financial information. The Mission column presents the
financial information of Mission, an entity which Nexstar Broadcasting is required to consolidate as a VIE (see Note
2). The Non-Guarantors column presents the combined financial information of Nexstar Holdings (not including any
subsidiaries) and other VIEs consolidated by Nexstar Broadcasting (See Note 2).

Nexstar Broadcasting’s outstanding 6.875% Notes and 6.125% Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly
and severally, by Nexstar and Mission, subject to certain customary release provisions. These notes are not guaranteed
by any other entities.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

As of March 31, 2015

(in thousands)

$-
(28,177 )

(28,177 )
(291,577 )

(15,238 )

$(334,992 )

$-
(28,177 )

(28,177 )
(15,238 )

43,415 )
(291,577 )

Consolidated

$44,584

237,054
281,638

277,837
441,129
489,698
347,660
65,189
$1,903,151

$17,189

119,224
136,413
1,526,830

168,471
1,831,714
71,437

Nexstar Non-
Nexstar ~ Broadcasting Mission  Guarantors Eliminations Company

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $- $38,922 $3,137 $2,525
Amounts due from consolidated
entities - - 28,177 -
Other current assets - 210,226 19,415 7,413
Total current assets - 249,148 50,729 9,938
Investments in subsidiaries 118,702 38,931 - 133,944
Amounts due from consolidated
entities 1,564 13,674 - -
Property and equipment, net - 245,505 23,596 8,736
Goodwill - 371,048 32,489 37,592
FCC licenses - 415,387 41,563 32,748
Other intangible assets, net - 285,292 20,700 41,668
Other noncurrent assets - 40,627 20,210 4,352
Total assets $120,266 $1,659,612 $189,287 $268,978
LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Current portion of debt $- $11,628 $1,961 $3,600
Amounts due to consolidated entities - 22,100 - 6,077
Other current liabilities - 107,824 6,431 4,969
Total current liabilities - 141,552 8,392 14,646
Debt - 1,242,777 227,288 56,765
Amounts due to consolidated entities - - - 15,238
Other noncurrent liabilities 3 ) 141,339 7,764 19,371
Total liabilities A3 ) 1,525,668 243,444 106,020
Stockholders' equity (deficit) 120,269 133,944 (54,157 ) 162,958
Total liabilities and stockholders'

equity (deficit) $120,266 $1,659,612 $189,287 $268,978
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$(334,992 )

$1,903,151
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2014

(in thousands)

$880

29,867
17,972
48,719

24,166
32,489
41,563
21,310
23,818
$192,065

$1,837
6,713
8,550
233,357

8,667

250,574
(58,509 )

$192,065

Nexstar
Nexstar ~ Broadcasting Mission

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $- $130,472
Amounts due from consolidated
entities - -
Other current assets - 166,112
Total current assets - 296,584
Investments in subsidiaries 109,834 -
Amounts due from consolidated
entities 1,476 13,764
Property and equipment, net - 211,504
Goodwill - 221,183
FCC licenses - 275,313
Other intangible assets, net - 163,796
Other noncurrent assets - 65,451
Total assets $111,310 $1,247,595
LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Current portion of debt $- $10,703
Amounts due to consolidated entities - 29,026
Other current liabilities - 73,546
Total current liabilities - 113,275
Debt - 931,143
Amounts due to consolidated entities - -
Other noncurrent liabilities 3 ) 78,101
Total liabilities 3 ) 1,122,519
Stockholders' equity (deficit): 111,313 125,076
Total liabilities and stockholders'

equity (deficit) $111,310 $1,247,595
22

Non-

Consolidated

Guarantors Eliminations Company

$560

1,668
2,228
125,076

2,069
2,819
5,164
9,023
44,893
$191,272

$3,300
841
1,167
5,308
55,804
15,240
1,353
77,705
113,567

$191,272

$-
(29,867 )

(29,867 )
(234,910 )

(15,240 )

$(280,017 )

$-
(29,867 )

(29,867 )
(15,240 )
(45,107 )

(234,910 )

$(280,017 )

$131,912

185,752
317,664

237,739
256,491
322,040
194,129
134,162
$1,462,225

$ 15,840

81,426
97,266
1,220,304

88,118

1,405,688
56,537

$1,462,225
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Three Months Ended March 31, 2015

(in thousands)

Net broadcast revenue (including trade and

barter)

Revenue between consolidated entities
Net revenue

Operating expenses:

Direct operating expenses, excluding
depreciation

and amortization
Selling, general, and administrative
expenses,

excluding depreciation and amortization
Local service agreement fees between
consolidated

entities
Amortization of broadcast rights
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Interest expense, net
Other expenses
Equity in income of subsidiaries
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income
Net loss attributable to the noncontrolling
interests
Net income attributable to Nexstar

23

$-

$8.,868

Nexstar

$ 183,046
6,469
189,515

61,527

55,121

10,480
11,662
10,691
9,999
159,480
30,035
(16,580
(118

13,337

(4,469
8,868

$ 8,868

8,554
20,664

5,188
862

2,445
1,468
610
602
11,175
9,489
(2,316)

7,173
(2,821)
4,352

$4,352

Non-

$12,110 $8,235

1,926
10,161

2,970

1,306

4,024
1,451
1,759
271
11,781
(1,620 )
397 )

8,868
6,851
709

7,560

995
$ 8,555

$-
(16,949 )
(16,949 )

(16,949 )

(16,949 )

17,736 )
17,736 )

17,736 )

$ (17,736

Consolidated
Nexstar Broadcasting Mission Guarantors Eliminations Company

$ 203,391

203,391

69,685

57,289

14,581
13,060
10,872
165,487
37,904
(19,293 )
(118 )

18,493
(6,581 )
11,912

995

) $12,907
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

(in thousands)

Nexstar Non- Consolidated
Nexstar Broadcasting Mission Guarantors Eliminations Company
Net broadcast revenue (including trade and

barter) $- $ 124,953 $8,880 $ - $- $ 133,833
Revenue between consolidated entities - 2,445 9,648 - (12,093 ) -
Net revenue - 127,398 18,528 - (12,093 ) 133,833

Operating expenses:
Direct operating expenses, excluding

depreciation

and amortization - 37,483 4,366 - - 41,849
Selling, general, and administrative
expenses,

excluding depreciation and amortization - 40,217 823 - - 41,040
Local service agreement fees between
consolidated

entities - 9,648 2,445 - (12,093 ) -
Amortization of broadcast rights - 7,142 1,490 - - 8,032
Amortization of intangible assets - 5,420 773 - - 6,193
Depreciation - 7,686 733 - - 8,419
Total operating expenses - 107,596 10,630 - (12,093 ) 106,133
Income from operations - 19,802 7,898 - - 27,700
Interest expense, net - (12,677 ) (2493) - - (15,170 )
Other expenses - (128 ) - - - (128 )
Equity in income of subsidiaries 4,049 - - 4,049 (8,098 ) -
Income before income taxes 4,049 6,997 5,405 4,049 (8,098 ) 12,402
Income tax expense - (2,948 ) (2,101) - - (5,049 )
Net income $4,049 $4,049 $3,304 $4,049 $(8,098 ) $7,353
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Three Months Ended March 31, 2015

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Deposits and payments for acquisitions
Proceeds from sale of stations

Other investing activities

Net cash (used in) provided by

investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt
Repayments of long-term debt
Common stock dividends paid
Inter-company payments

Other financing activities

Net cash provided by (used in)

financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash

equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

period

25

Nexstar Non- Consolidated
Nexstar Broadcasting Mission Guarantors Eliminations Company
$- $ 40,900 $8,106 $ 620 $ - $ 49,626
- (6,545 32 ) - 176 (6,401 )
- (503,200 - 79 43,300 (459,979 )
- 70,105 - - (43,300 ) 26,805
- 727 150 176 (176 ) 877
- (438,913 118 97 - (438,698 )
- 409,950 - 2,000 - 411,950
- (97,431 (5,959) (750 - (104,140 )
(5,921) - - - - (5,921 )
4,456 (4,456 - - - -
1,465 (1,600 (8 ) (2 - (145 )
- 306,463 (5,967) 1,248 - 301,744
- (91,550 2,257 1,965 - (87,328 )
- 130,472 880 560 - 131,912
$- $ 38,922 $3,137 $ 2,525 $ - $ 44,584
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

(in thousands)

Nexstar
Cash flows from operating activities $- $ 46,269

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Deposits and payments for acquisitions
Other investing activities - 14

(3,899
(22,057

Non- Consolidated
Nexstar Broadcasting Mission Guarantors Eliminations Company
$(1,538) $ $ 44,731
34 ) (3,983
- (22,057
- 14
Net cash used in investing activities - (25,942 &4 ) (26,026
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debt - (2,155 (1,455) (3,610
Common stock dividends paid (4,588) - - (4,588
Inter-company payments 4,481 (4,481 - -
Other financing activities 107 10 (72 ) 45
Net cash used in financing activities - (6,626 (1,527) (8,153
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents - 13,701 (3,149) 10,552
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of period - 36,312 3,716 40,028
Cash and cash equivalents at end
of period $- $ 50,013 $567 $ $ 50,580

26

77



Edgar Filing: CCFNB BANCORP INC - Form 10-Q

10. Subsequent Events
On April 13, 2015, Nexstar repaid the outstanding principal balance of $30.0 million under its revolving credit

facility, funded by cash on hand.

On April 24, 2015, Nexstar’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.19 per share of its Class A
common stock. The dividend is payable on May 29, 2015 to stockholders of record on May 15, 2015.
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ITEM 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements and related Notes included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the Consolidated
Financial Statements and related Notes contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2014.

As used in the report, unless the context indicates otherwise, “Nexstar” refers to Nexstar Broadcasting Group, Inc. and
its consolidated subsidiaries Nexstar Finance Holdings, Inc. (“Nexstar Holdings”) and Nexstar Broadcasting, Inc.
(“Nexstar Broadcasting”). “Mission” refers to Mission Broadcasting, Inc.; “Marshall” refers to Marshall Broadcasting
Group, Inc.; and all references to the “Company” refer to Nexstar, Mission, Marshall and other consolidated VIEs

9 ¢ LT

collectively. All references to “we,” “our,” “ours” and “us” refer to Nexstar.

As a result of our deemed controlling financial interests in the consolidated VIEs in accordance with U.S. GAAP, we
consolidate the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of these VIEs as if they were wholly-owned
entities. We believe this presentation is meaningful for understanding our financial performance. Refer to Note 2 to
our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of our determination that we are required to
consolidate these entities’ financial position, results of operations and cash flows under the authoritative guidance for
variable interest entities. Therefore, the following discussion of our financial position and results of operations
includes the consolidated VIEs’ financial position and results of operations.

Executive Summary

2015 Highlights

-Net revenue during the first quarter of 2015 increased by $69.6 million, or 52.0% compared to the same period in
2014. The increase in net revenue was primarily due to incremental revenue from our newly acquired stations and
entities of $58.6 million and an increase in retransmission compensation on our legacy stations of $16.4 million,
primarily related to the 2014 renewal of contracts providing for higher rates per subscriber. These increases were
partially offset by decreases in advertising revenue due to 2015 not being a political or an Olympic year.

-On July 1, 2015, KLAF, our station serving the Lafayette, Louisiana market will launch as an NBC affiliate.
Previously, Lafayette has not had an in-market NBC affiliate. KLAF will operate in conjunction with our FOX
affiliate station in this market, KADN. Additionally, KYLE, our station serving the Waco-Temple-Bryan, Texas
market will launch as a MyNetworkTV affiliate. KYLE will operate in conjunction with our FOX affiliate station in
this market, KWKT. Previously, there was no stand-alone MyNetworkTV affiliate serving Waco-Temple-Bryan,
Texas market and KYLE and KWKT shared MyNetworkTV and FOX affiliations.

-During the first quarter of 2015, our Board of Directors declared dividends of $0.19 per share of Nexstar’s outstanding
common stock, or total dividend payments of $5.9 million.

Effective January 1, 2015, we completed the acquisition of the outstanding equity of privately-held CCA as
well as CCA’s rights and obligations with respect to certain operating agreements CCA had with White Knight
from SP ComCorp, NexPoint and Highland for a total consideration of $278.3 million in cash, less a $0.2
million receivable from the sellers representing working capital adjustment. CCA and White Knight,
collectively, owned 19 television stations in 10 markets. We paid a deposit of $27.0 million to CCA in April
2013 and the remaining purchase price of $251.3 million was funded at closing by a combination of cash on
hand, proceeds from term loans borrowed in October 2014 and borrowings from our revolving credit facility
in January 2015. Simultaneous with this acquisition, we sold the assets of two CCA stations, KPEJ and
KMSS, to Marshall for $43.3 million in cash, funded primarily by a $43.0 million deposit made in December
2014 arising from Marshall’s term loan borrowings. We also entered into local service agreements with

79



Edgar Filing: CCFNB BANCORP INC - Form 10-Q

Marshall to perform certain sales and other services for these stations. Additionally, we sold the assets of a

CCA station, WEVV, the CBS and FOX affiliate serving the Evansville, Indiana market, to BCB for $26.8

million in cash, plus a $0.8 million cash sale of certain real estate properties previously owned by Nexstar (not

acquired from CCA). Nexstar recognized a net loss on disposal of $0.5 million in connection with this

transaction. There is no relationship between Nexstar and BCB or their respective stations after the sale.
-Effective January 29, 2015, we acquired the assets of KASW, the CW affiliate in the Phoenix, Arizona market, from
Meredith and SagamoreHill for $71.3 million in cash, less a $0.5 million receivable from the sellers representing
working capital adjustment. We funded the purchase price through our 6.125% Notes and borrowings under our
existing credit facility. This acquisition allows us entrance into this market.
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-On February 2, 2015, we acquired the outstanding equity of Yashi, a local digital video advertising and targeted
programmatic technology platform, for $33.4 million in cash, less a $0.4 million receivable from the sellers
representing working capital adjustment. This acquisition is expected to broaden our digital media portfolio with
technologies and offerings that are complementary to our digital businesses and multi-screen strategies. The purchase
price was funded through our 6.125% Notes and borrowings under our existing credit facility.

-On February 13, 2015, we acquired the outstanding equity of KLAS, LLC, the owner of television station KLAS, the
CBS affiliate serving the Las Vegas, Nevada market, from Landmark Television and Landmark Media for $150.4
million in cash, plus a $0.6 million payable to the sellers representing working capital adjustment. We funded the
purchase price through our 6.125% Notes and borrowings under our existing credit facility. This acquisition allows
us entrance into this market.

-On January 29, 2015, we completed the issuance and sale of $275.0 million 6.125% Notes due 2022 at par. The notes
are our senior unsecured obligations and are guaranteed by Mission and certain of our and Mission’s future 100%
owned subsidiaries, subject to certain customary release provisions. In January and February 2015, we borrowed a
net amount of $40.0 million under our revolving credit facility. The proceeds from our 6.125% Notes and borrowings
under our revolving credit facility were used to partially finance the CCA, KASW, Yashi and KLAS acquisitions and
to pay for related fees and expenses. In April 2015, we repaid the $30.0 million outstanding principal balance under
our revolving credit facility funded by cash on hand.

-On January 30, 2015, Mission repaid the outstanding principal balance under its revolving credit facility of $5.5
million.

-In January and March 2015, Marshall borrowed a total of $2.0 million under its revolving credit facility.

-In March 2015, we, Mission and Marshall repaid the contractual maturities under each of our term loans, for a total of
$3.7 million.

Overview of Operations

As of March 31, 2015, we owned, operated, programmed or provided sales and other services to 107 television
stations and 36 digital multicast channels, including those owned by VIEs, in 58 markets in the states of Alabama,
Arizona, Arkansas, California, Colorado, Florida, Illinois, Indiana, lowa, Louisiana, Maryland, Michigan, Missouri,
Montana, Nevada, New York, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virginia and Wisconsin. The stations
are affiliates of ABC (20 stations), NBC (20 stations), FOX (28 stations), CBS (17 stations), The CW (10 stations and
2 digital multicast channels), MyNetworkTV (10 stations and 4 digital multicast channels), Telemundo (one station
and one digital multicast channel), RTV (one station), Bounce TV (9 digital multicast channels), Me-TV (9 digital
multicast channels), Estrella (6 digital multicast channels), LATV (one digital multicast channel), This TV (one digital
multicast channel), Weather Nation Utah (one digital multicast channel), Movies! (one digital multicast channel) and
News/Weather (one digital multicast channel). Through various local service agreements, we provided sales,
programming and other services to 31 stations and 6 digital multicast channels owned and/or operated by independent
third parties. See Note 2—Variable Interest Entities to our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I, Item
1 of this Form 10-Q for a discussion of the local service agreements we have with these independent third parties.

We also guarantee all obligations incurred under Mission’s and Marshall’s senior secured credit facilities. Similarly,
Mission and Marshall are guarantors of our senior secured credit facility. Mission is also a guarantor of our 6.875%
Notes and 6.125% Notes but Marshall is not a guarantor of these notes. In consideration of our guarantee of Mission’s
senior secured credit facility, Mission has granted us purchase options to acquire the assets and assume the liabilities
of each Mission station, subject to FCC consent, for an amount equal to the greater of (1) seven times the station’s cash
flow, as defined in the option agreement, less the amount of its indebtedness, as defined in the option agreement, or

(2) the amount of its indebtedness. Additionally, we have an option to purchase any or all of Mission’s stock, subject to
FCC consent, for a price equal to the pro rata portion of the greater of (1) five times the Mission stations’ cash flow, as
defined in the agreement, reduced by the amount of indebtedness, as defined in the agreement, or (2) $100,000. These
option agreements (which expire on various dates between 2017 and 2024) are freely exercisable or assignable by us
without consent or approval by Mission or its shareholders. We expect these option agreements to be renewed upon
expiration.
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We do not own Mission, Marshall, Parker and White Knight or their television stations. However, we are deemed
under U.S. GAAP to have controlling financial interests in these entities because of (1) the local service agreements
Nexstar has with their stations, (2) our guarantees of the obligations incurred under Mission’s and Marshall’s senior
secured credit facilities, (3) our power over significant activities affecting their economic performance, including
budgeting for advertising revenue, advertising sales and, for Mission, Parker and White Knight, hiring and firing of
sales force personnel and (4) purchase options granted by Mission and White Knight that permit Nexstar to acquire
the assets and assume the liabilities of each Mission and White Knight station, subject to FCC consent. In compliance
with FCC regulations for all the parties, each of Mission, Marshall, Parker and White Knight maintain complete
responsibility for and control over programming, finances and personnel for their stations.
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Industry Trends

As a television broadcaster, the Company is highly regulated and its operations require that it retain or renew a variety
of government approvals and comply with changing federal regulations. In 2014, the FCC modified its television
ownership rules such that a television licensee that sells more than 15 percent of the weekly advertising inventory of
another television station in the same Designated Market Area is deemed to have an attributable ownership interest in
that station. Parties to existing JSAs that would be deemed attributable interests and do not comply with the FCC’s
local television ownership rule were given until December 19, 2016 to come into compliance. Although the FCC has
indicated that it will consider waivers of the new JSA attribution rule, the FCC thus far has not granted any such
waiver and has provided little guidance on what factors must be present for a waiver to be granted. The Company
expects to incur additional costs in complying with this new rule. The Company does not expect the new rules to
impact its JSA revenue in 2015; however, the Company may begin to be negatively impacted by the new JSA
attribution rule in 2016. If the Company is unable to obtain waivers from the FCC and is required to amend or
terminate its existing agreements, the Company could have a reduction in revenue and increased costs if it is unable to
successfully implement alternative arrangements that are as beneficial as the existing JSAs. Various parties, including
us (and Mission, which has intervened), have appealed this new rule to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit.

In March 2014, the FCC’s Media Bureau issued a public notice announcing “processing guidelines” for certain pending
and future applications for FCC approval of television acquisitions. The public notice indicates that the FCC will
“closely scrutinize” applications which propose a JSA, SSA or local marketing agreement (“LMA”) between television
stations, combined with an option, a similar “contingent interest,” or a loan guarantee. The U.S. Court of Appeals for the
D.C. Circuit has dismissed an appeal of the processing guidelines. These new processing guidelines have impacted the
Company’s previously announced acquisitions and may affect the Company’s acquisition of additional stations in the
future.

Also in March 2014, the FCC amended its rules governing retransmission consent negotiations. The amended rule
initially prohibited two non-commonly owned stations ranked in the top four in viewership in a market from
negotiating jointly with MVPDs. On December 5, 2014, federal legislation extended the joint negotiation prohibition
to all non-commonly owned television stations in a market. Mission, Marshall, Parker and White Knight are now
required to separately negotiate their future retransmission consent agreements with MVPDs for certain of their
stations. We cannot predict at this time the impact this amended rule will have on future negotiations with MVPDs
and the impact, if any, it will have on the Company’s revenues and expenses.

Seasonality

Advertising revenue is positively affected by strong local economies, national and regional political election
campaigns, and certain events such as the Olympic Games or the Super Bowl. The Company’s stations’ advertising
revenue is generally highest in the second and fourth quarters of each year, due in part to increases in consumer
advertising in the spring and retail advertising in the period leading up to, and including, the holiday season. In
addition, advertising revenue is generally higher during even-numbered years, when state, congressional and
presidential elections occur and advertising airs during the Olympic Games. 2015 is not an election year or an
Olympic year.
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Historical Performance
Revenue

The following table sets forth the amounts of the Company’s principal types of revenue (in thousands) and each type of
revenue (other than trade and barter) as a percentage of total gross revenue:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2015 2014

Amount % Amount %
Local $84,524 40.7 $65,642 47.1
National 35,578 17.1 27,189 19.5
Political 360 0.2 4,003 2.9
Retransmission compensation 66,564 32.1 35,129 25.2
Digital media revenue 19,312 9.3 6,277 4.5
Other 1,201 0.6 981 0.8
Total gross revenue 207,539 100.0 139,221 100.0
Less: Agency commissions (15,541) (12,516)
Net broadcast revenue 191,998 126,705
Trade and barter revenue 11,393 7,128
Net revenue $203,391 $133,833

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth a summary of the Company’s operations (in thousands) and each component of operating
expense as a percentage of net revenue:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2015 2014

Amount % Amount %
Net revenue $203,391 100.0 $133,833 100.0
Operating expenses:
Corporate expenses 11,683 5.7 8,504 6.4
Station direct operating expenses, net of trade 67,806 33.3 40,379 30.2
Station selling, general and administrative expenses 45,606 22.4 32,536 24.3
Trade and barter expense 11,298 5.6 7,142 5.3
Depreciation 10,872 5.3 8,419 6.3
Amortization of intangible assets 13,060 6.5 6,193 4.6
Amortization of broadcast rights, excluding barter 5,162 2.6 2,960 2.2
Income from operations $37,904 $27,700
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Three Months Ended March 31, 2015 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

Revenue

Gross local advertising revenue was $84.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, compared to

$65.6 million for the same period in 2014, an increase of $18.9 million, or 28.8%. Gross national advertising revenue
was $35.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, compared to $27.2 million for the same period in 2014,
an increase of $8.4 million, or 30.9%. The increase in local and national advertising revenue was primarily attributable
to incremental revenue from our newly acquired stations of $30.9 million. Our legacy stations’ local and national
advertising revenue decreased by $3.7 million primarily due to prior year advertising revenue from the Olympics on
our NBC affiliate stations. Our largest advertiser category, automotive, represented 23.9% and 24.2% of our legacy
stations’ local and national advertising revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Overall, this category decreased by 2.1% for our legacy stations. The other categories representing the Company’s top
five for its legacy stations were fast food/restaurants, which decreased 2.0%, furniture, which increased 1.4%,
radio/TV/cable/newspaper, which decreased 8.1%, and medical/healthcare, which increased 9.0%.

Gross political advertising revenue was $0.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, compared to $4.0
million for the same period in 2014, a decrease of $3.6 million, due to 2015 not being an election year.

Retransmission compensation was $66.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, compared to

$35.1 million for the same period in 2014, an increase of $31.4 million, or 89.5%. The increase in retransmission
compensation was attributable to a $16.4 million increase on our legacy stations, primarily related to the 2014 renewal
of contracts providing for higher rates per subscriber, and a $15.0 million incremental revenue from our newly
acquired stations.

Digital media revenue, representing advertising revenue on our stations’ web and mobile sites and other internet-based
revenue, was $19.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, compared to $6.3 million for the same period
in 2014, an increase of $13.0 million. The increase was primarily attributable to incremental revenue from our newly
acquired stations and entities of $12.3 million.

Operating Expenses

Corporate expenses, related to costs associated with the centralized management of our stations, were $11.7 million
for the three months ended March 31, 2015, compared to $8.5 million for the same period in 2014, an increase of $3.2
million, or 37.4%. This was primarily attributable to an increase in stock-based compensation expense of $1.2 million
due to equity incentive awards in January 2015, an increase in payroll expense of $0.9 million related to the increased
number of stations and an increase in legal and professional fees of $0.5 million associated with our acquisitions of
stations and entities.

Station direct operating expenses, consisting primarily of news, engineering, programming and station selling, general
and administrative expenses (net of trade expense) were $113.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015,
compared to $72.9 million for the same period in 2014, an increase of $40.5 million, or 55.5%. The increase was
primarily due to expenses of our newly acquired stations and entities of $30.4 million and an increase in programming
costs for our legacy stations of $7.1 million primarily related to recently enacted network affiliation agreements.
Network affiliation fees have been increasing industry wide and will continue to increase over the next several years.

Depreciation of property and equipment was $10.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, compared to
$8.4 million for the same period in 2014, an increase of $2.5 million, or 29.1%, primarily due to the incremental
depreciation of fixed assets from the Company’s newly acquired stations and entities and an increase in depreciation
from purchased software during 2014 and during the first quarter of 2015, partially offset by decreases in depreciation
from certain fully depreciated property and equipment.
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Amortization of intangible assets was $13.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, compared to

$6.2 million for the same period in 2014, an increase of $6.9 million. The increase was primarily attributable to
incremental amortization of other intangible assets from the stations and entities acquired in 2014 and 2015, partially
offset by decreases in amortization from certain fully amortized intangible assets.

Amortization of broadcast rights, excluding barter was $5.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015,

compared to $3.0 million for the same period in 2014, an increase of $2.2 million, or 74.4%, primarily attributable to
incremental amortization from the Company’s newly acquired stations of $2.6 million.
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Interest Expense

Interest expense, net was $19.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, compared to $15.2 million for the
same period in 2014, an increase of $4.1 million, or 26.9%, primarily attributable to increased borrowings during 2015
and 2014 to fund the Company’s acquisitions. This increase was partially offset by lower interest rates on the
Company’s outstanding debt.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $6.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, compared to $5.0 million for the
same period in 2014, an increase of $1.5 million, or 30.3%. The effective tax rates for the three months ended March
31,2015 and 2014 were 35.6% and 40.7%, respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate primarily relates to the
acquisitions of CCA, White Knight and KLLAS, which resulted in reductions to the state tax rate applied to the
pre-existing net deferred tax liabilities and pre-tax book income. The reduction was due to the location of these
companies and assets in jurisdictions with lower tax rates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company is highly leveraged, which makes us vulnerable to changes in general economic conditions. The
Company’s ability to meet the future cash requirements described below depends on its ability to generate cash in the
future, which is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other conditions, many
of which are beyond the Company’s control. Based on current operations and anticipated future growth, the Company
believes that its available cash, anticipated cash flow from operations and available borrowings under the senior
secured credit facilities will be sufficient to fund working capital, capital expenditure requirements, interest payments
and scheduled debt principal payments for at least the next twelve months. In order to meet future cash needs, we
may, from time to time, borrow under our existing senior secured credit facility or issue other long- or short-term debt
or equity, if the market and the terms of our existing debt arrangements permit, and Mission and Marshall may, from
time to time, borrow under their existing senior secured credit facilities. The Company will continue to evaluate the
best use of its operating cash flow among its capital expenditures, acquisitions and debt reduction.

Overview

The following tables present summarized financial information management believes is helpful in evaluating the
Company’s liquidity and capital resources (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2015 2014
Net cash provided by operating activities $49,626  $44,731
Net cash used in investing activities (438,698) (26,026)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 301,744 (8,153 )
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  $(87,328 ) $10,552
Cash paid for interest $6,397 $5,547
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds) $5,925 $47

(1) The cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds, during the three months ended March 31, 2015 includes the
payment of $5.9 million in taxes related to the tax gain on sale of a station to Marshall.
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As of

March 31,

2015

$ 44,584
1,544,019
63,000

As of
December 31,
2014

$ 131,912

1,236,144

99,500

(1)Based on covenant calculations as of March 31, 2015, all of the $63.0 million unused revolving loan commitments
under the Company’s senior secured credit facilities were available for borrowing.
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Cash Flows — Operating Activities

Net cash flows provided by operating activities increased by $5.0 million during the three months ended March 31,
2015 compared to the same period in 2014. This was primarily due to an increase in net revenue of $69.6 million less
an increase in station and corporate operating expenses (excluding stock compensation) of $42.5 million. These
transactions were partially offset by a $3.0 million use of cash resulting from timing of collections of accounts
receivable, a $7.3 million use of cash due to the timing of payments to vendors, an increase in payments for income
taxes of $5.9 million, an increase in cash paid for interest of $0.9 million and an increase in payments for broadcast
rights of $2.1 million.

Cash paid for interest increased by $0.9 million during the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to the same
period in 2014, primarily due to increased borrowings during 2015 and 2014 to fund the Company’s acquisitions. This
increase was partially offset by lower interest rates on the Company’s outstanding debt.

Cash Flows — Investing Activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities increased by $412.7 million during the three months ended March 31, 2015
compared to the same period in 2014. In 2015, we completed the acquisitions of CCA, KASW, Yashi and KLAS for
total payments of $460.0 million. Simultaneous with our acquisition of CCA, we sold a station owned by CCA for
$26.8 million in cash and certain real estate properties we owned for $0.8 million in cash. In 2014, we completed the
acquisitions of KCAU, WHBF and WOI and paid the remaining purchase price of $22.1 million.

Capital expenditures during the three months ended March 31, 2015 increased by $2.4 million compared to the same
period in 2014 primarily due to capital expenditures for newly acquired stations and entities.

Cash Flows — Financing Activities

Net cash flows provided by financing activities were $301.7 million during the three months ended March 31, 2015
compared to net cash used in financing activities of $8.2 million for the same period in 2014.

In 2015, the net cash flows provided by financing activities were primarily due to our sale and issuance of $275.0
million 6.125% Notes due 2022 at par. We also borrowed a net amount of $40.0 million under our revolving credit
facility. These borrowings were used to partially finance the CCA, KASW, Yashi and KLAS acquisitions and to pay
for related fees and expenses. We also received $1.5 million proceeds from stock option exercises and recognized a
$1.7 million excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation arrangements. These cash flow increases were partially
offset by $3.7 million scheduled repayments of outstanding principal balance under our, Mission’s and Marshall’s term
loans, payments of dividends to our common stockholders of $5.9 million ($0.19 per share each quarter) and

payments for capital lease obligations of $0.4 million.

In 2014, we and Mission repaid a total of $3.6 million outstanding principal under our and Mission’s term loans and
we paid quarterly dividends to our common stockholders of $4.6 million ($0.15 per share).

Our senior secured credit facility may limit the amount of dividends we may pay to stockholders over the term of the
agreement.

Future Sources of Financing and Debt Service Requirements

As of March 31, 2015, we, Mission and Marshall had total combined debt of $1.5 billion, which represented 96.0% of
the Company’s combined capitalization. The Company’s high level of debt requires that a substantial portion of cash
flow be dedicated to pay principal and interest on debt, which reduces the funds available for working capital, capital
expenditures, acquisitions and other general corporate purposes.
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The Company had $63.0 million of total unused revolving loan commitments under its senior secured credit facilities,
all of which were available for borrowing, based on the covenant calculations as of March 31, 2015. The Company’s
ability to access funds under its senior secured credit facilities depends, in part, on its compliance with certain
financial covenants. Any additional drawings under the senior secured credit facilities will reduce the Company’s
future borrowing capacity and the amount of total unused revolving loan commitments.

On April 13, 2015, we repaid the outstanding principal balance under our revolving credit facility of $30.0 million
funded by cash on hand.

On April 24, 2015, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.19 per share of our Class A common
stock. The dividend is payable on May 29, 2015 to stockholders of record on May 15, 2015.
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We have also signed an agreement to acquire KCWI from Pappas. We will fund the $3.3 million remaining purchase
price, subject to working capital adjustments, to Pappas through cash on hand upon closing which we expect to occur
in the second quarter of 2015.

The following table summarizes the principal indebtedness scheduled to mature for the periods referenced as of March
31, 2015 (in thousands):

Remainder
Total of 2015 2016-2017 2018-2019 Thereafter
Nexstar senior secured credit facility $454,985  $8,223 $74913 $123,627 $248222
Mission senior secured credit facility 229,604 1,377 4,670 4,670 218,887
Marshall senior secured credit facility 60,500 2,550 12,650 45,300 -
6.875% senior unsecured notes due 2020 525,000 - - - 525,000

6.125% senior unsecured notes due 2022 275,000 - - - 275,000
$1,545,089 $ 12,150 $92,233  $173,597 $1,267,109
We make semiannual interest payments on our $525.0 million 6.875% Notes on May 15 and November 15 of each
year. We will make semiannual interest payments on our $275.0 million 6.125% Notes on February 15 and August 15
of each year beginning on August 15, 2015. Interest payments on our, Mission’s and Marshall’s senior secured credit
facilities are generally paid every one to three months and are payable based on the type of interest rate selected.

The terms of our, Mission’s and Marshall’s senior secured credit facilities, as well as the indentures governing our
6.875% Notes and 6.125% Notes, limit, but do not prohibit us, Mission or Marshall from incurring substantial
amounts of additional debt in the future.

The Company did not have any rating downgrade triggers that would accelerate the maturity dates of its debt.
However, a downgrade in the Company’s credit rating could adversely affect its ability to renew the existing credit
facilities, obtain access to new credit facilities or otherwise issue debt in the future and could increase the cost of such
debt.

Debt Covenants

The Company’s senior secured credit facility contains covenants that require us to comply with certain financial ratios,
including: (a) a maximum consolidated total net leverage ratio, (b) a maximum consolidated first lien net leverage
ratio, and (c) a minimum consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio. The covenants, which are calculated on a quarterly
basis, include the combined results of the Company. Mission’s and Marshall’s senior secured credit facilities do not
contain financial covenant ratio requirements; however, they do include events of default if Nexstar does not comply
with all covenants contained in its credit agreement. The 6.875% Notes and the 6.125% Notes contain restrictive
covenants customary for borrowing arrangements of these types. The Company believes it will be able to maintain
compliance with all covenants contained in the credit agreements governing its senior secured facilities and the
indentures governing our respective notes for a period of at least the next twelve months from March 31, 2015.

No Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of March 31, 2015, we did not have any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such
as entities often referred to as structured finance or variable interest entities, which would have been established for
the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. All of our
arrangements with Mission, Marshall and other VIEs in which we are the primary beneficiary are on-balance sheet
arrangements. Our variable interests in other entities are obtained through local service agreements, which have valid
business purposes and transfer certain station activities from the station owners to us. We are, therefore, not materially
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exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we had engaged in such relationships.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Company’s Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP,
which requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its
estimates, including those related to goodwill and intangible assets, bad debts, broadcast rights, trade and barter and
income taxes. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that it
believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
those estimates. Results of operations for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results for the full year.
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Information with respect to the Company’s critical accounting policies which it believes could have the most
significant effect on the Company’s reported results and require subjective or complex judgments by management is
contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014. Management believes that as of
March 31, 2015, there has been no material change to this information.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 2 of our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for a discussion of recently issued accounting pronouncements, including our expected date of adoption
and effects on results of operations and financial position.

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All

statements other than statements of historical fact are “forward-looking statements” for purposes of federal and state
securities laws, including: any projections or expectations of earnings, revenue, financial performance, liquidity and
capital resources or other financial items; any assumptions or projections about the television broadcasting industry;

any statements of our plans, strategies and objectives for our future operations, performance, liquidity and capital
resources or other financial items; any statements concerning proposed new products, services or developments; any
statements regarding future economic conditions or performance; any statements of belief; and any statements of
assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. Forward-looking statements may include the words “may,” “will,” “should,”
“could,” “would,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continue,” “expects, plans,” “believes,” “estim:
similar words.
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anticipates,” “future,” “intends,
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Although we believe that the expectations reflected in any of our forward-looking statements are reasonable, actual
results could differ from a projection or assumption in any of our forward-looking statements. Our future financial
position and results of operations, as well as any forward-looking statements, are subject to change and inherent risks
and uncertainties, including those described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2014 and in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The forward-looking statements made in
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are made only as of the date hereof, and we do not have or undertake any
obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances unless otherwise
required by law.

ITEM 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to its long-term debt obligations.

The term loan borrowings at March 31, 2015 under the Company’s senior secured credit facilities bear interest rates

ranging from 2.2% to 3.8%, which represented the base rate, or LIBOR, plus the applicable margin, as defined. The

revolving loans bear interest at LIBOR plus the applicable margin, which totaled 2.2% at March 31, 2015. Interest is
payable in accordance with the credit agreements.

If LIBOR were to increase by 100 basis points, or one percentage point, from its March 31, 2015 level, the Company’s
annual interest expense would increase and cash flow from operations would decrease by approximately $3.4 million,
based on the outstanding balances of the Company’s senior secured credit facilities as of March 31, 2015. Due to the
LIBOR floor on certain of our term loans, an increase of 50 basis points in LIBOR would result in a $1.3 million
increase in annual interest expense and decrease in cash flow from operations. If LIBOR were to decrease either by
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100 basis points or 50 basis points, the Company’s annual interest would decrease and cash flow from operations
would decrease by $0.4 million. Our 6.875% Notes and 6.125% Notes are fixed rate debt obligations and therefore are
not exposed to market interest rate changes. As of March 31, 2015, the Company has no financial instruments in place
to hedge against changes in the benchmark interest rates on its senior secured credit facilities.

Impact of Inflation

We believe that the Company’s results of operations are not affected by moderate changes in the inflation rate.
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ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Nexstar’s management, with the participation of its President and Chief Executive Officer along with its Chief
Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this report of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of Nexstar’s disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Based upon that evaluation, Nexstar’s President and Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer concluded
that as of the end of the period covered by this report, Nexstar’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective, at a
reasonable assurance level, to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that it files or submits
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (i) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and (ii) is accumulated and communicated to Nexstar’s
management, including its President and Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

As of the quarter ended March 31, 2015, there have been no changes in Nexstar’s internal control over financial
reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, its internal control over financial
reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, the Company is involved in litigation that arises from the ordinary operations of business, such as
contractual or employment disputes or other general actions. In the event of an adverse outcome of these proceedings,
the Company believes the resulting liabilities would not have a material adverse effect on its financial condition or
results of operations.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors
There are no material changes from the risk factors previously disclosed in Part I, Item 1A in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.

ITEM 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
None.

ITEM 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
None.
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ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
None.

ITEM 5. Other Information

The unaudited financial statements of Mission Broadcasting, Inc. as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 and
for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, as filed in Mission Broadcasting, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, are incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 6. Exhibits

Exhibit No.  Description

4.1 Indenture, dated as of January 29, 2015, among Nexstar Broadcasting, Inc., Nexstar Broadcasting
Group, Inc., as a guarantor, Mission Broadcasting, Inc., as a guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as trustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form
8-K (File No. 000-50478) filed by Nexstar Broadcasting Group, Inc. on January 30, 2015).

4.2 Form of Senior Note (included in Exhibit 4.1).

10.1 Amendment to Executive Employment Agreement, dated as of January 29, 2015 between Perry A.
Sook and Nexstar Broadcasting, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 000-50478) filed by Nexstar Broadcasting Group, Inc. on February 5, 2015).

31.1 Certification of Perry A. Sook pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

31.2 Certification of Thomas E. Carter pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

32.1 Certification of Perry A. Sook pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350.*

322 Certification of Thomas E. Carter pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350.*

101 The Company’s unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes for the
quarter ended March 31, 2015 from this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, formatted in XBRL
(eXtensible Business Reporting Language).*

*Filed herewith

38

97



Edgar Filing: CCFNB BANCORP INC - Form 10-Q
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

NEXSTAR BROADCASTING GROUP, INC.

/S/ PERRY A. SOOK
By: Perry A. Sook
Its: President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

/S THOMAS E. CARTER
By: Thomas E. Carter

Its: Chief Financial Officer (Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)
Dated: May 8, 2015
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